
CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appleton.org 

 

 
TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee, Common Council  
 
From:  ACA Zak Buruin 
 
Date:  August 22, 2025 
 
RE: 25-0994 – Supporting Documentation - Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" 

Liquor License Revocation Hearing for Rivera Restaurants LLC - Vanessa Alvarado, 
Agent 

 

 
Attached to this memorandum, please find available documentation in support of the complaint 
seeking the revocation of the alcohol licenses of for Rivera Restaurants LLC - Vanessa Alvarado, 
Agent.   
 
The documentation includes available Judgements of Conviction for the civil and criminal 
offenses described within the complaint.  These are arranged approximately in chronological 
order, primarily by court file number.  These are publicly available documents obtained from the 
Outagamie County Clerk of Courts.   
 
Also included are the available investigative reports for the incidents described within the 
complaint.  These are arranged in order by incident number, which in most cases results in them 
being ordered chronologically as well.  
 
The provided investigative reports contain redactions made by Appleton Police Departments 
record custodians in accordance with department policies and the applicable open records 
requirements.  This was done to ensure their suitability for public release and inclusion in the 
Committee and Council’s record.   
 
Also included are other documents related to the above licenses, provided to further enhance 
completeness of the record.  

http://www.appleton.org/








































APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A24043576

Reporting Officer: 9193 BRYCE RUDEBECK

Report Time: 09/15/2024 01:11:40

Incident 

Incident Nature
Drug Complaint

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
09/15/2024 01:11:40

Occurred To
09/15/2024 01:11:40

Received By
431 ALEXIS HELLER

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
09/15/2024

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Cleared By Arrest

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9199 TURNER BOTZ

9174 LUKAS BUTEYN

9136 JACOB MATWIEJCZYK

9104 DALTON LEHRER

9193 BRYCE RUDEBECK

9190 HRUBY IZABELLA

9176 CASEY SPENCER

9139 RYAN BIFFERT

7719 LOGAN POUPORE

9142 SAM GUELI

Circumstances
Code Comment

CONFINEMENT

USE OF FORCE

DRUG UNIT / ACISS
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Offenses 

Liquor Law Violations

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 9-51

Description 
LIQUOR AND FERMENTED 
MALT BEVERAGE LAW 
VIOLATION

Category 
ALC

All Other Offenses

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
946.41(1)

Description 
RESISTING OR 
OBSTRUCTING OFFICER

Category 
OTHER

Drug/Narcotic Violations

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
13

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
961.41(3G)(E)

Description 
POSSESSION OF THC

Category 
DRUG

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

D

Criminal And Gang 

U

Persons 
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CERDA, MANUEL A
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
01/31/2005

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'10"

Weight
250

Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'07"

Weight
157

Property 

Marijuana Evidence

Brand Model Serial Number

Color Quantity
17.94

Total Value
$0.00

Measurement
Gram

Amount Recovered
$0.00

Date Recovered

Status
Seized

Owner

Narratives 

Original Narrative 09/15/2024 02:11:37

OFFICE RUDEBECK REPORTING:  

On 09-14-2024 I, Officer Rudebeck #9193, was assigned to the College Avenue detail from 2200-
0300 hours. I was in full uniform and in squad 928.  

At approximately 0112 hours, I had heard officers report that there was a disturbance in the alley 
behind Mr. Frogs located at 409 W College Ave, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, WI 54911. 
Upon arrival, I noticed there was a larger crowd in the parking lot of St. Joseph Catholic Church, 
located at 404 W Lawrence St, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, WI 54911.  
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I had observed several occupants yelling and appeared to have been in some sort of disturbance. 
While looking through the parking lot, I noticed a Hispanic male crouched between several calls and 
had his shirt off. Based on training and experience, I beleived that the male was involved in a 
physical disturbance. When he proceeded to try and hide in between parked vehicles, I called out to 
him and blipped him with flashlight and had told him to stop. The male looked at me and began to 
run southbound through the parking lot. I announced myself as a police officer and again told him 
to stop. The male continued to run southbound and was later brought to the ground by Ofc. Biffert 
#9139. The male was later placed into handcuffs that were properly fitted and escorted to Ofc. 
Biffert's squad. For more information, please see Ofc. Biffert's supplemental report and other 
supplements.  

The male at first claimed he did not have an ID and verbally identified himself as Manuel A Cerda 
with a DOB of 01-31-2000. A WI driver's license was later located on his person with a name of 

. Based on physical features, I did not believe the ID belonged to him. While 
officers were searching Manuel, I had overheard that he admitted that he had marijuana on his 
person. For more information, please see the supplemental reports. Ofc. Biffert later transported 
Manuel to Outagamie County Jail, and I ended contact with him.  

END OF REPORT 

ARREST: Manuel A Cerda, M/U, 01-31-2005, was arrested for the following charges:  

-Resisting/Obstruction an Officer SS. 946.41(1) 
- Possession of Marijuana SS. 961.41(3G)(E) 

CASE STATUS: Cleared by arrest. 

RECORDING DEVICE: Axon on.

Supplemental 
Narrative

09/15/2024 06:22:17 9139 RYAN BIFFERT

On 09/15/2024 at approximately 0111 hrs. I, Officer Biffert #9139 heard officers report a physical 
fight between a large group of individuals at Mr. Frogs 409 W College Av. Appleton, WI 54911. I 
heard additional units being requested to the south alley behind the business. 

Upon arrival, I noticed multiple people in the St. Joseph Parish parking lot. I then parked my squad 
at the intersection of Walnut St. and Lawrence St. with my emergency lights activated. While 
exiting my squad, I heard officers yell "Police Stop" towards a male that was running south through 
the parking lot not wearing a shirt. It should be noted that at this time, I was driving marked squad 
1041 and wearing my full police uniform. After noticing the male running full speed towards me, I 
grabbed onto the male and lowered him to the ground using my weight. The male was later 
identified as Manuel Cerda. Manuel was subsequently placed in handcuffs while on the ground. I 
asked Manual if he was injured and if he needed medical attention. Manuel stated no. 

Manuel was asked prior to searching if he had anything illegal on him. Manuel admitted that he had 
some weed in his pocket. I located a package of "Strawberry Cannabis". According to the package 
the bag contained 7g of Cannabis flower. The package was located in Manuel's front pants pocket. I 
also located a WI DL belonging to  in Manuel's front pants pocket. At this 
time, Manuel gave officers a different name and officers were not able to positively identify him. 
Manuel was transported to the Outagamie County jail where Grand Chute Police was able to 
confirm identity using live scan that his name was Manuel Cerda. I issued a citation to Manuel for 
underage drinking/posses as Manuel was 19 years old and admitted to being on "the liquor" and 

Page 4 of 5

8/11/2025file:///C:/Users/allcoxci/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



showed signs of intoxication and impairment. The citation was given to Manuel and the mandatory 
court appearance was explained. Manual was then released to jail staff.  

I tested the green bud like substance inside the package and the substance tested positive for THC 
using a Mobile Detect pouch. The package was then inventoried at the Appleton Police Department. 
I also inventoried the WI DL for  for safekeeping.  

End of Report 
Officer Biffert #9139

Supplemental 
Narrative

09/15/2024 23:32:39 9199 TURNER BOTZ

LIEUTENANT BOTZ REPORTING: 

On 09/15/2024 I was working as a fully uniformed Patrol Lieutenant for the Appleton Police 
Department. While working in this capacity, I was conducting foot patrol in the 400 block of West 
College Avenue.  

While in the area, I observed music stop playing within Mr. Frogs located at 409 West College 
Avenue. I immediately found it strange the music had stopped playing as I was aware the bar was 
currently full of bar patrons and it was not yet close to mandatory bar close. It has been my 
experience that when bar music suddenly stops playing with a large amount of patrons still inside 
the bar, it is likely due to a disturbance occurring within the confines of the bar.  

When I made my way into the bar, I noticed the main dance floor primarily empty and a large 
group of people actively yelling and moving towards a back patio door that lead into Kimball Alley. I 
radioed to other Police Units of the disturbance and the need for additional resources.  

When I got into the alley, I noticed the same group continuing to engage in disruptive behavior. I 
observed several people physically fighting with each other and other people with their shirts off 
yelling. In total, there was approximately 10-20 people engaged in this disruptive behavior. 

I verbalized to the group, Police stop! A majority of the group immediately began running away 
from me and my current position. At this time, I saw other Officers begin to arrive in the area and 
was aware of one individual who was detained that was seen running from this immediate area.  

At this point, I had no further involvement in this incident.  

END OF SUPPLEMENT  
LIEUTENANT BOTZ REPORTING #9199 

CC: OCDA - Manuel A Cerda, DOB: 01/31/05 (confined 09/16/24 eld)
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A24044814

Reporting Officer: 9165 DAVID SCHNEIDER

Report Time: 09/21/2024 12:33:42

Incident 

Incident Nature
Battery

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS; PHONE CALL
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
09/21/2024 01:00:00

Occurred To
09/21/2024 02:00:00

Received By
453 ANGELA OWENS

How Received
Telephone

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
09/26/2024

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Cleared By Arrest

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9165 DAVID SCHNEIDER

Circumstances
Code Comment

CONFINEMENT

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON

Offenses 

Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
947.01(1)

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER
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Simple Assault

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
940.19(1)

Description 
MISDEMEANOR BATTERY

Category 
OTHER

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

N

Criminal And Gang 

N

Weapons 

40

Persons 

Victim

Address Phone DOB

Race
Unknown

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'00"

Weight
150

LOHRENTZ PAMONICUTT, DEONDRA R
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
10/22/2002

Race
American Indian/Alaskan

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'10"

Weight
175
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Narratives 

Original Narrative 09/22/2024 13:36:57

On 9/21/24 at approximately 1235hrs, I was dispatched to make a telephone call to  
in reference to a disturbance that had occurred at Mr. Frog's, located at 403 W College Ave, 
between 0100-0200hrs.  

Upon telephone contact,  advised that she had been having problems with a Deondra 
Lohrentz-Pamonicutt for several months. Earlier this morning, she had been at Mr. Frog's. After 
using the restroom,  was walking back into the bar area.  stated that Deondra came up 
from behind her and punched her in the cheek and traveling to her eye. Security initially broke up 
the fight, but when Deondra got away from security,  told me that she began fighting 
Deondra. 

I asked  what she meant but she began fighting, and she told me that she punched Deondra 
at least twice to defend herself.  told me that she now had a black eye and possibly a broken 
finger.  had not gone to a doctor and did not plan to as she had already placed a splint on the 
finger.  

I asked  if she would be willing to meet me at APD so I could observe her injuries, and she 
agreed. At approximately 1340hrs,  arrived at APD. I spoke to  in lobby conference 
room A. I immediately noticed  left eye was black.  

I asked  how she knew Deondra, and she stated they had been roommates from January of 
2024 to March of 2024 but things didn't work out. Deondra also believes that  owes her 
money for a security deposit which has caused Deondra to harass  for the last few months. 

 stated that when she was at Mr. Frog's earlier in the morning, she did not know that 
Deondra was there.  stated that it wasn't until Deondra hit her in the face that she knew she 
was there.  denied any in person or electronic communication leading up to the disturbance. 

 advised that getting punched in the face caused her pain without consent.  

I asked  how her finger got injured, and she stated it was from her punching Deondra in the 
face twice.  also did not recall if she punched Deondra before or after security broke the two 
of them up. Security removed Deondra from the bar and  was allowed to remain. Security 
had also told  that there would be surveillance video of the incident. 

I provided  a VC information sheet and ended my contact with her. I also went over the no 
contact provision with  in the event that Deondra was located and taken into custody. The no 
contact will be in effect if Deondra is taken into custody. 

On 9/22/24 at approximately 0930hrs, I called Deondra with no answer. I left Deondra a message 
to call me back at APD.  

At the time of this report, Deondra has not contacted me. This case will be active pending contact 
with Deondra.  

END REPORT 

Sgt. Schneider #9165

Supplemental 
Narrative

09/26/2024 14:01:38 9165 DAVID 
SCHNEIDER
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On 9/26/24 at approximately 1120hrs, Deondra arrived at APD to speak with me. I was handling 
another call for service and was unable to speak to Deondra. I requested Sgt. Hoffman complete 
the interview for me.  

Sgt. Hoffman contacted me via telephone and briefed me on the interview. Based upon the 
interview, I requested Sgt. Hoffman take Deondra into custody for domestic battery and DC. Sgt. 
Hoffman confined Deondra at OCJ on those charges and provided her with the 72hr no contact 
provision.  

At approximately 1350hrs, I completed a follow up phone call with  Sgt. Hoffman had 
relayed to me that  had been intentionally bumping into Deondra and her friends at the bar. I 
asked  about this, and she maintained her original story that she did not know Deondra was 
at the bar and was blindsided by Deondra when she left the restroom.  

I requested night shift officers attempt to obtain video from the bar. However, at the time of this 
report, they have been unable to obtain the video. I will continue to attempt to make contact with 
the bar to obtain video footage. Harbor House was notified of the domestic arrest.  opts IN to 
sharing information with Harbor House and VCRs.  

See Sgt. Hoffman's supplement for further information.  

Arrest Custody: 

Deondra was confined at OCJ for domestic battery and DC. 

Case Status: 

Cleared by arrest.  

END REPORT 

Sgt. Schneider #9165 

CC: OCDA Deondra Rose Lohrentz-Pamonicutt, DOB: 10/22/2002 (posted, 09/27/24, lrw)

Supplemental 
Narrative

09/30/2024 12:11:46 9143 NATHAN 
HOFFMAN

On 09/26/2024 I Sgt Hoffman with the Appleton Police Department's Special Investigations Unit, 
was contacted by Sgt. Schneider. Sgt. Schneider stated he was investigating a disturbance that 
occurred the weekend before. He already spoke with one of the parties involved and the other party 
agreed to come into the lobby for an interview. I then responded to the Appleton Police Department 
lobby where I made contact with Deondra R. Lohrentz Panonicutt.  

I spoke with Deondra in an interview room. I informed her that I was assisting Sgt. Schneider with 
his investigation into a disturbance that happened the previous weekend. Initially Deondra stated 
that she was not going to say anything because she did not want to incriminate herself. I informed 
her that I know there are two sides to every story and it was important that we hear her side of it. 
She indicated that she did not have anything to say. I then informed her that if that was the case I 
would only have one side of the story to go on and that she would be placed under arrest for 
battery. Deondra asked if she decided to talk to me, if she would still be arrested. I told her that it 
depended on the information she provided. She then agreed to speak with me. I explained to 
Deondra that she was not required to speak with me if she did not want to. Her statement would be 

Page 4 of 5

8/11/2025file:///C:/Users/allcoxci/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



voluntary.  

Deondra stated that she and , who was the other party involved in the disturbance, 
had been roommates for three months. She stated that they lived together in Green Bay. Deondra 
decided to move out prior to the lease agreement and there was a dispute over getting money back 
for the security deposit. Deondra stated that  owed her the money but refused to pay her.  

Deondra stated that she and a group of friends went out to the bars together the night of the 
incident. They were at several other establishments prior to the fight. She indicated that she and 

 had several friends in common. Throughout the night she would see  around her group 
of friends. Deondra indicated that  would bump into her and her friends while walking through 
the bar.  

Later in the evening they ended up at Mr. Frogs. While they were standing at the bar,  
walked up and bumped into her again. At that point, Deondra stated that she turned around and 
shoved   backed up like she did not want to fight. When Deondra turned around and 
faced away from her,  grabbed her by the hair and struck her in the face. That is when the 
fight ensured. Deondra stated that workers at the bar broke them up and told them to leave. She 
ended up leaving the bar after that. I asked if she suffered any injuries and she stated that she had 
a bruise on her left eyebrow. I looked, but could not observe any injury. It should be noted that 
Deondra did have make up on that could have concealed the injury. I asked Deondra where in the 
bar the fight occurred and she stated that it happened by the bar area.  

I then contacted Sgt. Schneider and informed him of Deondra's statement. He stated that based on 
his investigation he wanted Deondra taken into custody for misdemeanor battery. I then informed 
Deondra that she would be taken into custody for the battery. She was walked to the Outagamie 
County jail. Deondra indicated that she had the money to post bond. She was handcuffed prior to 
walking into the jail. I had Deondra read and sign the 72 hour no contact form due to it being a 
domestic related arrest. She was then turned over to the Outagamie County Jail staff. A copy of the 
72 hour no contact was provided to Deondra, the jail, and Sgt. Schneider.  

Axon present. 

cc: OCDA Deondra Rose Lohrentz-Pamonicutt, DOB: 10/22/2002 (10/01/24 pjh)

Supplemental 
Narrative

10/06/2024 09:46:18 9165 DAVID 
SCHNEIDER

On 10/6/24 at approximately 0947hrs, I was able to make phone contact with staff from Mr. Frogs. 
I was advised that they had reviewed their cameras from the incident, but the disturbance was not 
captured.  

END REPORT 

Sgt. Schneider #9165 

cc: OCDA Deondra Rose Lohrentz-Pamonicutt, DOB: 10/22/2002 (10/08/24 pjh)
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A24044935

Reporting Officer: 9167 MASON BALLWEG

Report Time: 09/22/2024 02:18:02

Incident 

Incident Nature
Battery

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
09/22/2024 02:18:02

Occurred To
09/22/2024 02:18:02

Received By
431 ALEXIS HELLER

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
09/22/2024

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Cleared By Arrest

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9167 MASON BALLWEG

9119 TYRELL WEST

9148 SAMUEL VANDINTER

9219 JAMISON WELLS

9153 KYLE JAKOBSEN

9101 PAUL CHRISTENSEN

Circumstances
Code Comment

CONFINEMENT

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON

Offenses 
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Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
947.01(1)

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER

Simple Assault

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
13

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
940.19(1)

Description 
MISDEMEANOR BATTERY

Category 
OTHER

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

N

Weapons 

40

Persons 

Victim

Address

 

Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'05"

Weight
170
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LO, IZARIAN A
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
02/21/2001

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
6'00"

Weight
175

Witness

Address
 

Phone DOB

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'06"

Weight
140

Narratives 

Original Narrative 09/25/2024 05:40:57

Officer Ballweg Reporting #9167  

On September 22nd, 2024, around 0218 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was 
working uniformed patrol for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a 
complete police uniform with all required gear, such as an APD police badge on 
my chest to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-issued Axon 
body-worn camera. I operated an unmarked APD patrol car with the identification 
number #926. I was on foot in the 400 block of W College Ave, Appleton, WI 
54911, Outagamie County. I observed a large crowd gathering in front of 409 W 
College Ave, Mr. Frogs. I then saw two females on the ground in front of the 
establishment. I informed Dispatch that there was an active disturbance and 
approached the disturbance.   

I saw two females on the ground and a third female attempting to break up the 
fight. I announced "Police" and told both parties to end the fight. The female, 
later identified as   ceased fighting. The other female, identified 
as Izarian Lo, continued to hold onto  hair and was actively pulling it. 
I grabbed onto Izarian's hands in an attempt to make her let go of  I felt 
Izarian tense her muscles in her arm and pull, which caused a large chunk of 

 hair to be pulled out. I then started to pull Izarian away from  
and saw Izarian kick at  as I was pulling her away.  did not attempt 
to reengage.  

I continued to pull Izarian away from  Izarian stated "I will do it again, 
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take me to jail. It was fucking worth it." I secured Izarian in handcuffs and 
started to have her sit up. As I did that, she informed me that she would do it 
again. I took "it" to be fighting  Izarian was walked to Officer 
Jakobsen's squad and I informed her that she was under arrest. A person that 
Izarian seemed to know walked up to us and Izarian again stated "I'll do it 
again, it was worth it, it was worth it." Izarian also informed me that  
had started the disturbance by swinging at her first. Izarian was secured in a 
squad car and buckled.   

I then walked over to where  was speaking with Officer VanDinter #9148. 
 informed him that Izarian had ripped some of her hair out and just walked 

up to  and started to attack her.  explained that  brother and 
Izarian had a falling out, which led to issues between  and Izarian. 

 friend,   confirmed what  was saying.  felt pain 
from Izarian kicking and pulling her hair.  did not give consent for 
Izarian to hit her, kick her or pull her hair.  was provided a victim 
packet and opted into services.  was then released from the scene. See 
Officer Vandinter's supplement for further.   

I had Officer Jakobsen transported Izarian to the Outagamie County jail. She 
would be confined on battery and disorderly conduct, due to her actions on the 
avenue. Izarian informed me of the following information unprompted.  had 
attacked her first earlier in the night and punched her in the eye. Later when 
they saw each other again Izarian approached  and told her to "do it 
again." Izarian explained that she reapproached  because if Izarian just 
walked away after being punched, she would have been made fun of on social 
media.  did appear to have a watery and red left eye but had also started 
to cry as soon as she was placed in the back of the squad car. She was unable to 
tell me where on the avenue  had punched her.  also continued to make 
several statements about how she would fight  again, but did not think it 
was fair that she was the one going to jail. Izarian was confined without 
incident.   

I viewed the Avigilon cameras for the intersection of W College Ave and N 
Division St. It clearly showed the disturbance. At 0217 hours, Izarian can be 
seen standing in front of Sal's Pizza to the west of Mr. Frogs. Izarian appears 
to be looking toward Mr. Frogs, where  and  are standing. Izarian 
started to walk toward  and  and immediately, Izarian reached for 

  was between them and can be seen attempting to push Izarian 
away. It appeared that Izarian grabbed onto  hair immediately and used 
that to move  around. Both parties fall the ground, which was when I 
observed them fighting. I attempted to view camera footage prior to the 
disturbance in an effort to figure out when  might have struck Izarian, but 
I was unable to track Izarian and  on the cameras to when they would have 
first had contact with one another. The video did confirm that the fight was 
only in front of Mr. Frogs and not related to inside the establishment. 

Based on the observed actions, statements and camera footage, it appeared that 
Izarian initiated the disturbance and was the primary aggressor in the 
disturbance. The camera footage was logged as evidence. All parties were 
identified by WI DL. 

Axon Recording   

Case Status: Cleared by Arrest  

Arrest/ Custody: Izairian A Lo DOB: 2/21/2001  

Izarian was confined at Outagamie County jail for Battery WI SS 940.19(1) and 
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Disorderly Conduct WI SS 947.01(1). Izarian instigated a violent physical 
disturbance that was in a public space. Izarian also caused . to feel pain 
without 's consent by pulling her hair and grabbing her. Izarian also 
continued to inform officers that she would engage in the behavior again and 
that it was worth going to jail over.  

Victim Services: Opted In 

End of Report #9167 

cc: OCDA - Izarian Arlene Lo, DOB: 02/21/2001 (posted 09/23/2024 SLK)

Supplemental 
Narrative

09/23/2024 06:47:03 9148 SAMUEL 
VANDINTER

Reporting Officer: S. Van Dinter #9148  
A24044935 

On 09/22/2024 at 2:18 AM while on duty for the City of Appleton Police 
Department I, Ofc. Van Dinter assisted on disturbance complaint at 409 W. 
College Ave. in the City and County of Wisconsin. I interviewed   
regarding this incident.  told me the other involved female, Izarian Lo, 
had attacked her for no reason and without provocation. I asked  if she 
knew Izarian and she told me her brother use to date her.  told me as she 
was walking past Mr. Froggs Izarian grabbed her by the hair and pulled her to 
the ground and struck her multiple times.  told me Izarian pulled chunks of 
her hair out.  stated Izarian caused her pain without her consent.  

I spoke briefly with   who confirmed  statement. I informed 
Ofc. Ballweg of my findings.  

AXON: 9148 

END OF REPORT.  
OFC. VAN DINTER #9148 

cc: OCDA - Izarian Arlene Lo, DOB: 02/21/2001 SUP#1 (09/25/2024 SLK)

Supplemental 
Narrative

09/24/2024 09:00:04 9513 NICOLE 
DELPLAINE

FORENSIC EVIDENCE SPECIALIST NICOLE DEL PLAINE #9513: 

INJURY PHOTOGRAPHY 
On 09/23/2024 I, Forensic Evidence Specialist Nicole del Plaine #9513, was 
working my scheduled shift when I captured injury photographs of an individual 
in relation to a battery incident (A24044935). The individual, later identified 
as Izarian "Izzy" Arelene Lo (DOB: 02/21/2001; F/B), was currently in the police 
department's lobby. 
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I prepared my camera equipment. All photographs would be captured on the manual 
RAW-Large setting per department policy. I wrote all pertinent case information 
on a grey card. The first photograph that I captured was of the grey card. I 
collected the following: 
* Item #2: Izarian "Izzy" A. Lo [DOB: 02/21/2001; F/B] injury photographs 
(09/23/2024 at 1123 hours). 

F.E.S. Kourtney Hyland would accompany me and assist with scale throughout this 
process. 

We met Izarian in the lobby and moved to a lobby conference room for privacy. I 
explained that I would be taking a series of photographs depicting all injuries 
made known to us. Moreover, I advised if she were uncomfortable at any time, to 
let us know, and we would halt the process. 

I asked that Izarian stand against a plain wall to ensure a neutral background. 
I began by capturing overall photographs. These would depict who I was 
photographing. Next, I asked Izarian to identify areas of pain and/or injury, 
whether visible or not. I captured mid-range and close-up photographs of each 
area that was mentioned. These photographs were taken with and without scale. 

Izarian stated that she had bruising around her left eye. I observed visible 
discoloration around her left eye (eye socket), which appeared to be inflamed. 
There was some light reddening visible on her sclera (white portion of the eye), 
left of her pupil. Izarian also pointed out reddening on her right eye. This eye 
appeared significantly more irritated than the left. I observed reddening that 
was more substantial in size and color. This reddening was located on her sclera 
just left of her pupil. 

Izarian identified bruising on her right breast, as well. I observed 
discoloration above and to the right of her areola.  

Izarian described an injury to her left hand's middle finger. She stated that 
she had sought medical treatment for the finger following the incident, and that 
personnel had originally believed the finger had sustained a sprain. Later on, 
she received a call from the medical professional who concluded that she had 
sustained a fracture that finger. I observed Izarian's middle finger to be 
swollen and bent unlike her other fingers. The distal phalanx (area above the 
knuckle) was pink/blue in color. 

Finally, Izarian stated that she felt pain on the left side of her forehead. She 
was unsure if there was any visible bruise. I captured photographs of the area, 
including some discoloration. It is unknown whether the discoloration was part 
of Izarian's complexion or if it was an injury. 

After all photographs had been captured, we informed Izarian that she could 
contact us if she wanted additional photographs taken in the future. Then, I 
returned to the Identification Unit and secured my camera equipment in the 
Evidence Hold area. The photographs that I had taken for this case remained in 
this secure location until they could be logged into BEAST and transferred to 
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the proper digital evidence storage location. 

This concluded my involvement with this case at this time. 
End of report. del Plaine #9513 

cc: OCDA - Izarian Arlene Lo, DOB: 02/21/2001 SUP#2 (09/25/2024 SLK)
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A24051645

Reporting Officer: 9158 SAMUEL VASSAR

Report Time: 11/02/2024 04:04:55

Incident 

Incident Nature
Domestic Disturbance

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
11/02/2024 04:04:48

Occurred To
11/02/2024 04:07:41

Received By
443 RHONDA GREIN

How Received
Telephone

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
11/03/2024

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Cleared By Arrest

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9158 SAMUEL VASSAR

9133 YEELENG THOR

Circumstances
Code Comment

CONFINEMENT

DOMESTIC WELFARE

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9158

Offenses 
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All Other Offenses

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
940.19(1)

Description 
MISDEMEANOR BATTERY

Category 
OTHER

All Other Offenses

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
946.49(1)(B)

Description 
FELONY BAIL JUMPING

Category 
OTHER

All Other Offenses

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
946.49(1)(A)

Description 
MISDEMEANOR BAIL 
JUMPING

Category 
OTHER

Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
947.01(1)

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER
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Aggravated Assault

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
940.235(1)

Description 
STRANGULATION AND 
SUFFOCATION

Category 
OTHER

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

A

Criminal And Gang 

N

Weapons 

85

Drug/Narcotic Violations

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-32

Description 
POSSESSION OF MARIJUANA

Category 
DRUG

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

N

Criminal And Gang 

P

Persons 
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Victim

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
4'09"

Weight
70

BAGGETT, GEORGE Q JR
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
09/23/2000

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'09"

Weight
196

Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'05"

Weight
155

ALVARADO, VANESSA M
Contact

Address Phone DOB
03/14/1990

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'01"

Weight
160
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Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
6'00"

Weight
140

Property 

Marijuana Seized

Brand Model Serial Number

Color Quantity
.23

Total Value
$0.00

Measurement
Gram

Amount Recovered
$0.00

Date Recovered

Status
Seized

Owner

Narratives 

Original Narrative 11/03/2024 23:11:00

On 11/02/1014 at approximately 0404 hours in the City of Appleton, Outagamie County WI, I, 
Officer Samuel Vassar #9158, was dispatched to 1338 W Spencer St for an after the fact domestic 
disturbance which occurred at Mr Frogs, located at 409 W College Ave. The complainant, who I 
later identified verbally as  F/W DOB:  stated that the father of her 
child, identified fully through records as George Q Baggett Jr M/B DOB 09/23/2000 had choked her 
while they were in the bar. She was not requesting an ambulance, and was waiting for officers at 
her residence. 

I responded with FTO Van Dinter and made contact with  at her address. We were invited 
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inside and I began to question her what happened after confirming she did not want any immediate 
medical attention. Through my conversation with  she identified the relationship with 
George to be former boyfriend-girlfriend.  said they never lived together and were never 
married, but they do share a child in common, who was verbally identified as  
F/U DOB: .  said there is no custody agreement in place, and  is 
primarily cared for by her, as George is out of the picture as a parent, only visiting occasionally. 

 said that very consistently for the last four years, she and George have not seen each other 
or spoken to each other, with the exception that because they primarily reside near the downtown 
area of Appleton, they might see each other unintentionally infrequently, and  would avoid 
having contact with George. Earlier in the night,  was at Mr Frogs with her friend who she 
identified as  F/B DOB: . After a while at that bar, they proceeded to a 
different bar called the Leg Lamp Lounge, located at 427 W College Ave, before returning to Mr 
Frogs. When the general time frame of bar close came around, at approximately 0230 hours, 

 told me she was still in the bar, near the front door when she noticed George entering the 
bar. George approached  directly, and according to her, he pushed her against the wall 
which is perpendicular to the main entry door frame.  said she felt what she described as a 
shock, likely due to the disruption of fluids in her body, and that after this happened, George used 
both of his hands, which he placed around her neck.  said she felt George squeeze or tighten 
his grip around her neck to the point that she felt dizzy, and felt the inability to breathe.  

 recalled that George was calling her various vulgar slurs as he was doing this, but she could 
only recall for certainty that he was repeatedly calling her a bitch.  told me she could not 
recall exactly how long this was happening for, but the disturbance was broken up by bouncers at 
the bar.  told me that George was there with some of his friends, and she has knowledge 
that many of the employees are also friends with him, and she was questioning herself if anybody 
was going to help her because it took such a long time for intervention. After the physical aspect of 
the disturbance ended,  said George left, and she did immediately after, walking straight to 
her residence with  I asked  if there was anything that could have provoked such a 
physical response from George, and she told me that she feels he was trying to get back into a 
relationship with her. Additionally,  told me that when she goes out in public with friends and 
George notices her, she sometimes would be approached by him or receive messages which 
indicated to her George becomes jealous if she talks to other people.  advised she did not 
consent to being touched, strangled, injured, or be a part of any disturbance. 

 told me that she should never have had a child with George because he never used to be 
violently aggressive like this.  detailed an incident that occurred approximately two to three 
months ago in the church parking lot across from our police department, during the same time of 
the morning, where George approached her and slapped her across the face.  said that was 
the first time George was ever physically violent with her and she was surprised, but regretted not 
immediately reporting the incident to our department because she did not think it would continue 
to happen.  stated that when she and George were in a relationship years ago, there would 
be intense verbal arguments, but nothing became physical. 

I spoke with  about the dangers of not seeking medical attention regarding strangulation 
cases, even if she did not immediately feel symptoms. FTO Van Dinter proposed to  the 
option to have a brief examination conducted at a hospital by a SANE nurse, and she agreed. A 
SANE nurse was requested by FTO Van Dinter via phone, and we were advised one would be paged 
to respond to ThedaCare Medical Center - Appleton. I completed a Domestic Abuse Worksheet with 

 at that time while Officer Thor collected initial photos of redness as an ID Tech. 

While further questioning during completion of the Domestic Abuse Worksheet,  said George 
has injured her in the past one time, and that was previously described to happen approximately 
two to three months ago. He also has threatened to injure her, her family and/or friends with 
homicide, but George never provided a manner of doing this.  did mention that George 
usually conceals a firearm on his person although he is a felon, and he has easy access to them. 
During the strangulation,  said she suffered a difficulty breathing and felt light headed. 

 told me she has been getting over a cold, but her symptoms of a hoarse and raspy voice 
along with trouble swallowing have been worse since the disturbance. The lethality assessment 
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questionnaire was completed and I notified  she was scored for high danger.  did not 
want to immediately talk to an advocate, but she consented to me sharing her information.  
confirmed the corm was completed with accuracy, and I provided her a Victim Information Packet. 

I transported  to ThedaCare Medical Center - Appleton and evidence was collected pertaining 
to the strangulation. While listening in on the evidence collection,  made some concerning 
comments regarding her safety to the nurse to include "I'm scared to go to sleep", "I don't want to 
not wake up in the morning", and "[George] could've killed me". After the exam was completed, I 
provided  copies of already mentioned paperwork and confirmed she had no questions. I 
concluded my contact and transported the evidence kit to the Appleton Police Department where I 
packaged and entered it into the BEAST system. Harbor House was notified of this incident via 
phone call. 

I was later notified that George was taken into custody by officers on 11/02/2024 at approximately 
1137 hours and he was confined at the Outagamie County Jail. George did not wish to provide a 
statement. On 11/03/2024 at the start of 1900 shift, I attempted to make contact with  to 
obtain a witness statement, but was unsuccessful in person or by phone. I provided  in 
person a completed No Contact Prohibition form and explained to her what its contents meant, as 
she elected the period of no contact to be enforced for both three and five days as provided in 
Outagamie County. The scanned copy of the form was completed prior to George being taken into 
custody, and incorrect effective dates were later written on the form. I corrected the pink copy 
issued to  to include the effective dates.  was also questioned regarding when she 
last spoke to  and they recently did exchange text messages.  said she would ask  
to contact our department when she leaves work in the City of Green Bay, WI later in the evening. 
Prior to concluding my contact,  was provided information regarding the use of Vine Link and 
CCAP website. She stated she had no questions and my contact concluded. 

Attached to this report is a copy of the Domestic Abuse Worksheet, Lethality Assessment 
Screening, No Contact Prohibition, Conditional Release, BEAST Case Report, and ThedaCare Chain 
of Custody. Documents were digitally scanned. For more information, see supplements to this 
report. 

It is requested that as part of bond conditions if George is provided the opportunity to post, for 
George to not enter any establishment whose primary purpose is sales of alcoholic beverages. 
George is also requested to not use any nonprescribed medication or consume any alcoholic 
beverages upon release as a significant amount of our department's contacts with George occur 
near bars. 

Axon: 9158 

Victim Services: A Crime Victim Information Packet was issued and the Request for Contact 
Information was provided. 

Harbor House - Notified of incident, and provided contact information for  to receive a follow 
up phone call at a later time. 

VCR - Not Requested 

Arrest/Custody Information: George Q Baggett M/B 09/23/2000 was confined in the Outagamie 
County Jail for the listed charges. 

- 947.01(1) Disorderly Conduct/Domestic Enhancer as George acted in a manner in public 
which captured the attention of other individuals who inserted themselves to stop a disturbance. 

- 940.235(1) Strangulation and Suffocation/Domestic Enhancer as George used both his 
hands to compress the neck area of  which caused the inability to effectively breathe and 
restrict blood flow without consent. 

- 940.19(1) Misdemeanor Battery/Domestic Enhancer as George, in the commission of 
strangulation, had caused visible and potential internal injury to  neck area without 
consent. 
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- 946.49(1)(A) Misdemeanor Bail Jumping as George, who was out on bond for Outagamie 
County Cases 2024CT000342 and 2024CT000720, Winnebago County Cases 2024CT000326 and 
2024CT000390, and Fond Du Lac County Case 2024CT000361 was arrested for committing a crime. 

- 946.49(1)(B) Felony Bail Jumping as George, who was out on bond for Winnebago County 
Case 2021CF000002 and Outagamie County Case 2023CF001202 , was arrested for committing a 
crime. 

CASE STATUS: Closed 

End of report 

Officer Samuel Vassar #9158 

CC: Outagamie County District Attorney's Office

Supplemental 
Narrative

11/02/2024 05:13:04 9133 YEELENG THOR

OFFICER THOR #9133 SUPPPLEMENT: 

On 11/02/2024 at approximately 0435, I, Officer Thor #9133, was requested to respond to 1338 W 
Spencer St to take photographs. As an evidence technician, I have received proper training in 
scene photography and evidence collection.  

I arrived on Spencer St and obtained the APD digital camera. After setting the digital camera up, I 
went inside the residence were Officer Vassar informed me that the victim, identified as  

 had injuries. I introduced myself and asked her about her injuries.  indicated that she 
had been strangled.  consented to having her injuries photographed.  

I began with overall photos of  before moving closer to her injuries. I observed on  
neck severe redness on her right, left, and center of her neck. I took several photos of these 
injuries at different angles, with and without flash.  stated that these were to only injuries 
that she had. I then left the residence.  

On 11/02/2024 at approximately 2324 hours, I heard officers advised that they were out with 
George Baggett on the 400blk of W College Ave. I knew that Officer Vassar had probable cause to 
arrest George for charges related to this incident. I responded to the 400blk of W College Ave and 
upon arrival, George was in custody. While George was searched incident to an arrest, Officer 
Grier-Welch was given a tobacco packaging. Within the packaging, Officer Grier-Welch informed me 
that there was suspected marijuana inside. I took custody of this item and also observed a green 
leafy substance that I suspected to be marijuana based on my training and experiences.  

George was placed in my squad and transported to the Appleton Police Department. I read George 
his Miranda Rights and when asked if he understood his rights, he would only answer "I guess". He 
would then ask why he was arrested multiple times. I tried explaining to George that I would like to 
talk to him, however as he was in custody, I needed to know if he understood his rights. George 
did not give me a valid answer. George wanted to know why he was arrested and I informed him 
that he was involved in a disturbance that occurred at Mr. Frogs. George would ask me about the 
disturbance, however at this time, George did not answer yes that he understood his rights. George 
would continue to ask about the disturbance, however I decided to stop talking to George as he 
was ignoring my question as to his understanding of his rights.  

George was ultimately transported to Outagamie County Jail. Once at the jail, I read George the 
72-hour no contact prohibition. After George was taken out of hand cuffs, I signed that 72-hour no 
contact form. George was released to jail staff without incident. The 72-hour form was given to 
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Officer Vassar.  

I later tested the suspected marijuana located on George. Before testing, I weighed the substance 
which was 0.23 grams. I then tested the substance with the Mobile Detect, specifically for 
marijuana/THC, which yielded positive for marijuana. The marijuana was logged into APD Evidence. 
I also logged the SD card I used to capture  injuries into APD Evidence. The evidence 
report for the items I logged in was attached to this report. I decided to issued George a citation for 
AC 10-32 Possession of Marijuana. I gave the Outagamie County Jail staff the citation. 

This concluded my involvement.  

Axon was on. 

End of Supplement.  

Thor #9133

Supplemental 
Narrative

11/03/2024 01:58:02 9124 JOSEPH BASAK

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 

On 11/02/2024 at approximately 23:25, I, Officer Joseph Basak #9124 with the Appleton 
Police Department, was assigned to the College Avenue Detail from 23:00 to 03:00, in full uniform, 
and on foot patrol in the 400 Block of West College Avenue, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, 
Wisconsin. 

Lieutenant West #9119, who was on foot patrol with me, made contact with a male who he 
was able to positively identify as ADULT OFFENDER George Baggett. Officer Vassar #9158 and his 
Field Training Officer, Officer Van Dinter #9148, had notified units that George needed to be 
confined on several Domestic Violence charges. Officer Ballweg #9167 and Lieutenant West 
maintained arm control while I placed George in handcuffs. I checked the handcuffs for fit and 
comfort before safety locking them. After completing a search incident to arrest, George was 
escorted to a squad car and subsequently transported to the Outagamie County Jail. 

This concluded my involvement with this case. For additional information, reference the 
original narrative and all other supplemental narratives. My Axon BWC was activated throughout 
this contact. 

END OF SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 

Officer Joseph Basak #9124

Supplemental 
Narrative

11/03/2024 20:15:29 9119 TYRELL WEST

On 11/02/24, I, Lt. West, was working as a patrol supervisor for the Appleton 
Police Department.  During my shift I was in uniform, operating marked squad 
1037.  At approximately 2324 hrs., I was conducting foot patrol in the 400 blk 
of W. College Ave.  I was also aware that Officers Vassar and Van Dinter had 
probable cause to arrest George Baggett for numerous charges reference this 
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case.  I know Baggett through past professional contacts and am aware that he 
frequents the downtown bar district in Appleton.   

While in the 400 blk of W. College Ave. I observed a male subject identified as, 
, walking westbound on College Ave. towards my location.  I knew 

that  had been hanging out with Baggett the night before on College Ave., 
thus I began to scan the subjects that were walking with  to see if Baggett 
was one of them.  I noticed a subject walking with  that was wearing a pink 
balaclava.  The balaclava was concealing his face however the subject eventually 
said something, and I immediately recognized the voice as Baggett's.  I told 
Baggett he was under arrest.  I assisted with taking control of Baggett's left 
arm while he was placed in handcuffs.  He was eventually secured in a squad and 
confined at OCJ.  For further details see officers' narratives. 

End of Supplement 

Lt. T. West 9119 

cc: OCDA - George Q Baggett DOB: 09-23-2000 (CONFINE 11-04-2024 9531bb)

Supplemental 
Narrative

11/04/2024 10:23:25 9195 LORI DUVEN

SGT DUVEN #9195/VSO REPORTING 

SUPPLEMENT 

On 11/04/2024 I was employed by the Appleton Police Department as the Victim 
Services Officer. My responsibilities as the Victim Services Officer include 
reviewing reports involving crime victims and following up with those victims as 
well as witnesses to violent crimes. During this follow-up, I answer questions 
victims and witnesses may have and facilitate connecting them with area services 
and resources. 

I am partnered with certified Facility K9 Edison, who is trained in a variety of 
tasks, and utilized during sensitive or trauma-involved interviews, follow-up 
contacts, as well as before, during, and after associated court proceedings. 

I received a secure email from Forensic Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) 
Coordinator . The email contained injury photos taken on 11/02/2024 
of . I logged the file sent to me into the BEAST 
Evidence System. 

END OF SUPPLEMENT 

cc: OCDA - George Q Baggett DOB: 09-23-2000 (SUP#4 11-05-2024 9531bb)

Supplemental 
Narrative

11/06/2024 23:15:20 9158 SAMUEL VASSAR
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SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE: 

On 11/03/2024 during my shift of 1500 hours to 2300 hours, I reviewed Avigilon Traffic Camera 
Surveillance during the time of this reported incident. Nothing was captured that happened inside 
the establishment, but  and  were seen rushing out of the 
establishment, pausing on the sidewalk area directly in front, and it appeared  was consoling 

 Both parties left walking westbound and George Baggett exited shortly later walking in the 
same direction. The video was bookmarked and entered into BEAST. 

I attempted contact in person with  and was unsuccessful. Several attempts were made to 
obtain a witness statement from her through a phone call but she did not answer, and I left a 
voicemail requesting a call back. I additionally attempted contact with the owner of Mr Frogs, 
identified through in-house records as Vanessa M Alvarado F/W DOB: 03/04/1990 at her registered 
DOT address but she did not appear to be home. I attempted phone contact with Vanessa but left a 
voicemail requesting a phone call back in attempt to obtain interior surveillance footage. 

On 11/07/2024 during my shift of 1900 hours to 0700 hours, I attempted phone contact with both 
 and Vanessa again, but was unsuccessful and left voicemails requesting a callback. Follow up 

to continue attempting to obtain a witness statement from  and with Vanessa to obtain 
interior surveillance video if possible to show the incident. 

End of Supplement 

Officer Samuel Vassar #9158

Supplemental 
Narrative

11/10/2024 18:41:59 9158 SAMUEL VASSAR

SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE 

On 11/10/2024 at the beginning of 1500 hrs shift, I received a voicemail from Vanessa Alvarado, 
who explained that the cameras she has in the Mr Frogs establishment cover the main doorway. I 
attempted to call Vanessa, but she did not answer, and I left a voicemail requesting she make 
contact with me so further information could be obtained through review of video. 

I also made phone contact with  at approximately 1838 hours, and she told me she 
didn't remember much from the night of this incident, because she said she was "blacked out" 
intoxicated.  said she could speak towards George Baggett's general behavior as a person, but 
she had no information to provide regarding  being strangled in the establishment by 
George. 

End of Supplement 

Officer Samuel Vassar #9158 

cc: OCDA - George Q Baggett DOB: 09-23-2000 (SUP#5-6 11-11-2024 9531bb)

Supplemental 
Narrative

01/28/2025 01:24:16 9158 SAMUEL VASSAR
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SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE 

On 01/20/2025 I received a request for follow-up from the Outagamie County 
District Attorney's Office referencing this incident to obtain medical records 
for . On 01/24/2025  signed an Authorization for the Disclosure 
of Health Information form regarding medical records held by ThedaCare. The form 
was scanned and attached to this report. No further information. 

End of Supplement 

Officer Samuel Vassar #9158 

cc: OCDA - George Q Baggett DOB: 09-23-2000 (SUP#7 01-28-2025 9531bb)

Supplemental 
Narrative

02/24/2025 23:34:10 9158 SAMUEL VASSAR

SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE 

On 02/14/2025 I received a report of laboratory findings from the Wisconsin 
State Crime Laboratory. Upon review of the report, DNA Analyst  

 detailed that upon testing of item A1a, skin to skin contact 
bilateral neck swabs collected from , a four (4) person DNA mixture 
was identified with the DNA of at least one belonging to a male. Laboratory 
findings were digitally attached to this report. 

On 02/17/2025 I was provided access to review phone calls made to and from 
George Baggett while he was confined at the Outagamie County Jail on charges 
from this case. A total of 277 phone calls were recorded. As time permitted, I 
began to review these records and took note of calls which held some evidentiary 
value relevant to this case. Noteworthy calls were made directly after George's 
confinement began and were documented as follows: 

On 11/04/2024 at 1847 hours, George called . This phone 
number is associated through in-house records to  F/B DOB: 

.  was associated with George in previous reports as they were 
roommates. The female George speaks to, assumed to be  indicated that 
she spoke with  During the call,  was telling George what  
said to her.  told  that she was not trying to press charges, and 
that she forgot to tell the police that she was "kicking and smacking" George, 
but George needed to learn his lesson. George expressed frustration to  
that he felt the police were too quick to make an arrest based off of one 
person's story. It is important to reiterate that when George was taken into 
custody by our department, he declined providing any sort of a statement to 
assist with finding the facts surrounding what occurred during this disturbance 
as he would not advise he understood his Miranda rights. 

On 11/04/2024 at 1919 hours, George called . Through an 
internet search, I identified the owner as F/B DOB:  
and confirmed that both she and George were associated through in-house records. 
I presumed the female speaking with George was   indicated she 
had recently spoken with   apparently told  that she was 
going to do everything she could with the police, including going to the 
hospital, in order to get George "locked up". 
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On 11/04/2024 at 1919 hours, George called . I was unable 
to identify the owner of this phone number, but through context of the 
conversation, I confirmed the user of that phone number was a female who was 
pregnant with George's child. She indicated she also recently spoke with  
and that  told her George got mad at her because she "fucked" someone he 
was associated with, although I was not able to determine what the supposed 
relationship was due to the quality of the audio. George rebutted by stating to 
the caller that he was approached by  while he was in the bar, and  
was making statements to him, telling George that she felt sorry for him and she 
felt sorry that the caller was his "baby mama". George continued to state that 

 had approached him and some other people his was with several times with 
 acting aggressive, including a point during a verbal disturbance where 
 kicked him and smacked his drink out of his hand. 

At the start of my shift on 02/28/2025, I proceeded to  address in 
attempt to make contact with her for further questioning after review of these 
phone calls. I was advised by family members that  was out of town for the 
weekend, so I elected to make phone contact with her at that time. I explained 
my reasoning for following up with  and explained the context of the three 
(3) detailed phone calls. Aubrey confirmed that she was contacted by  
who is actually George's mother very shortly after George was arrested.  
did tell  what happened, and she did not recall telling  
anything about forgetting to report that she was physically violent with George. 

 denied that any of this had happened, which aligned with her initial 
statement. I questioned  about her contact with  and I learned she 
had never met  but  did reach out to her at or around the time of 
the reported incident. This was the only time that  had spoken with 

 and she denied making any statements to  pertaining to George 
being arrested under malice. I also questioned  about the third phone call 
detailed in this supplement.  told me that she did have romantic relations 
with another male that George was friends with, and she said this did make 
George mad.  wished to not disclose the identity of this friend, as she no 
longer is in contact with him, and he had moved out of the area.  said she 
knew that George threatened this individual, saying he was going to kill the 
party.  explained George likely said this because of his jealousy which 
grows whenever he learns of  attempting to get in another relationship, as 
was detailed during the initial investigation. 

Prior to concluding my contact with  she said that she received messages 
from George within days of his arrest which were threatening in nature, and she 
did save those, but the incident was not reported to us. I at that time had to 
abruptly end the phone conversation to attend to an unrelated matter, but I left 

 a voicemail with a request to reach back out to me if she wished for me 
to investigate further the messages she had received from George. 

All audio files were downloaded to an external USB drive and entered as evidence 
for this complaint. Attached is a Beast Case Report. No further information. 

Axon: 9158 

End of Supplement 

Officer Samuel Vassar #9158 

cc: OCDA - George Q Baggett DOB: 09-23-2000 (SUP#8 03/03/2025 SLK)
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Supplemental 
Narrative

03/21/2025 13:27:07 9168 DUSTIN YULE

SGT YULE #9168 REPORTS: I was assigned to assist in this investigation by 
obtaining a buccal swab of George Q Baggett, DOB 9/23/2000, in order to compare 
to DNA samples already sent to the WI State Crime Lab. I had attempted numerous 
times to contact Baggett's attorney, unsuccessfully. I was similarly unable to 
locate him so I could obtain a search warrant, until 3/21/2025. On that day, I 
found that he had been confined at the Winnebago County Jail. I obtained a 
search warrant for Baggett's DNA, and on 3/21/2025, I executed that warrant at 
the Winnebago County jail. After obtaining Baggett's DNA via buccal swabs, I 
logged the swabs into evidence at the APD, and notified the Identification Unit 
of the pending trial, and that evidence was entered post-discovery. I completed 
the warrant return on that same day. The execution of the search warrant was 
recorded via Axon Capture and uploaded.  

Nothing further. 

END OF REPORT. 

Sgt. Yule #9168 

cc: OCDA - George Q Baggett DOB: 09-23-2000 (SUP#9 03/27/2025 SLK)
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A24051801

Reporting Officer: 9124 JOSEPH BASAK

Report Time: 11/03/2024 01:03:00

Incident 

Incident Nature
Disorderly Conduct

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
11/03/2024 01:03:20

Occurred To
11/03/2024 01:43:20

Received By
431 ALEXIS HELLER

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Inactive

Disposition Date
11/04/2024

Cleared Intrnl Inc. Sts

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9124 JOSEPH BASAK

9182 BENJAMIN GOODIN

9167 MASON BALLWEG

9102 DYLAN GRIER-WELCH

9129 TAYLOR JUSTICE

9119 TYRELL WEST

9219 JAMISON WELLS

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9124

Offenses 
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Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-9

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER

Persons 

Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'09"

Weight
150

Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'11"

Weight
140

Narratives 

Original Narrative 11/03/2024 12:02:12

INVESTIGATION 

On 11/03/2024 at approximately 01:43, I, Officer Joseph Basak #9124 with the Appleton 
Police Department, was assigned to the College Avenue Detail from 23:00 to 03:00, in full uniform, 
and on foot patrol in the 400 Block of West College Avenue, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, 
Wisconsin, 54914. While walking eastbound in the 400blk, I heard what sounded like a glass bottle 
brake near the doorway at Mr. Frogs; 409 West College Avenue. I then observed a male party fall 
down the stairs. The male appeared to be running from something. 

I immediately asked the male if he was okay. The male advised he was okay, quickly stood 
up, and left westbound. Lieutenant West #9119 and other units were able to intercept the male 
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and identify him as CONTACT . Moments after I checked on  I observed two adult 
males engaged in a pushing match in the entrance way. One male was trying to push into the bar 
and the other male was trying to keep him out of the bar. The males were holding onto each other 
however, they were not striking each other. I approached the the male who was trying to push his 
way into the bar, and instructed him to stop. Officers Ballweg #9167 and Grier-Welch #9102 
secured the male's arms and stabilized him against the wall. I then detained the male by placing 
him in handcuffs. I checked the handcuffs for fit and comfort before safety locking them. That male 
was later identified via a Wisconsin identification card as CONTACT . 

While units escorted  to there squad, I made contact with the other male who was 
trying to keep  outside. That male did not want to identify himself but explained he was 
working security for Mr. Frogs. The male explained he was trying to keep  outside because 
of a disturbance they were already dealing with inside. The male told me he was not injured, 
everyone was good, and he did not want anything to be done. After speaking with the male, I 
spoke with   explained after observing a physical disturbance inside the bar, he 
exited. Once the disturbance was over, he tried to enter the bar again. At that point, the security 
guard told him not to come inside, which would have been when I observed the parties in a pushing 
match. 

Another security guard walked over to me while I was speaking with  He told me 
 was good, was a regular, and they did not want anything done. Inconclusion,  was 

not involved in a disturbance inside the bar. I believed  was involved in the disturbance, 
which would explain him exiting the bar very quickly. According to Officers that spoke with  

 reported that someone had slapped him and he slapped them back.  did not want 
anything done. The other person, who allegedly slapped  did not contact law enforcement or 
try to make a complaint. At this time, there is no action as there were no injuries or any "willing 
victims." 

END OF REPORT 

ARREST/CUSTODY 

None. 

CASE STATUS/DISPOSITION 

Case closed. 

RECORDING DEVICE 

Axon BWC on. 

Officer Joseph Basak #9124
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A24052679

Reporting Officer: 9182 BENJAMIN GOODIN

Report Time: 11/08/2024 23:37:42

Incident 

Incident Nature
Ordinance Violation

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
11/08/2024 23:37:42

Occurred To
11/08/2024 23:37:42

Received By
430 JASON MARTILLA

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
12/18/2024

Cleared Intrnl Inc. Sts
Mailed Ordinance Summons

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9182 BENJAMIN GOODIN

9208 OWEN GEURTS

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON

Offenses 

Liquor Law Violations

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 9-51

Description 
LIQUOR AND FERMENTED 
MALT BEVERAGE LAW 
VIOLATION

Category 
ALC

Persons 
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WELLS, STEVEN JR
Contact

Address Phone DOB
08/21/1996

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'07"

Weight
160

Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'07"

Weight
220

RANSBY, IYANA M
Adult Offender

Address

 

Phone DOB
05/12/2004

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'05"

Weight
120

MENDOZA, BRYAN R
Contact

Address Phone DOB
11/30/2001

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
6'00"

Weight
240

Page 2 of 4

8/11/2025file:///C:/Users/allcoxci/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



ALVARADO, VANESSA M
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
03/14/1990

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'01"

Weight
160

Narratives 

Original Narrative 11/12/2024 18:44:55

A24052679 
B. Goodin 9182 
Ordinance 

On 11/8/24 at approximately 2330 hours I was on foot patrol working College Avenue security.  
The bouncer for Brau Haus, , flagged me down to inform me a 20-year-old female just 
attempted to enter Brau Haus but he denied her entry after he saw her age on her license.   
pointed the female out to me, who was walking east on the sidewalk in the 500 block of W. College 
Ave.  I followed the female from a short distance away to see if she was going to try and enter any 
other bars.  The female attempted to enter Speakeasy but the bouncer turned her away.  The 
female then walked to Mr. Frog's, located at 409 W. College Ave., and walked right in.  I could see 
from outside Mr. Frog's window that the female was in the middle of the dance floor and went 
deeper into the bar.  I entered Mr. Frog's and approached the female, who was now at the back of 
the dance floor near the edge of the bar area and asked her for identification.  The female, who was 
eventually identified by her Wisconsin license as Iyana Ransby, couldn't produce her ID.  I asked 
Iyana to step outside with me.  Iyana was confirmed to be 20 years old by her license. 

Iyana claimed she showed her ID when she entered Mr. Frog's, yet she never was able to produce 
it.  Iyana appeared under the influence of an unknown substance due to her eyelids being droopy 
and her words being slurred.  Iyana submitted to a PBT which registered .000% BrAC.  I later sent 
Iyana a citation via certified mail for Underage Person on License Premise. 

Bryan Mendoza (aka Morales) was in front of Mr. Frog's and said he would try and pull up 
surveillance footage to see how Iyana entered the bar.  Bryan gave me the impression he was 
working for Mr. Frog's by making this statement.  Bryan never produced any video footage for me 
to review.  As I began speaking with Bryan along with fellow Mr. Frog's employee Steven Wells, 
Bryan told me he was not on duty tonight for Mr. Frog's.  Neither Bryan nor Steven gave a 
response as to how Iyana entered the bar without a bouncer stopping her.  

On 11/11/24 I spoke with the owner of Mr. Frog's/license premise holder, Vanessa Alvarado, on the 
phone to discuss this incident.  Vanessa stated her employees told her that Iyana was able to gain 
entry while the bouncers were engaged in shift change.  Vanessa said "Jaron" was one of the 
bouncers working on Friday night but didn't know his last name (she thought it was possibly Wells 
but wasn't sure).  I told Vanessa I was going to mail her a citation for Underage Person on License 
Premise and she understood. 

APD Crime Analyst Sue Gallagher was able to save video footage from a City camera that is aimed 
south toward D2/Mr. Frog's/Sal's Pizza.  The footage shows Iyana entering the bar then exiting a 
few minutes later after I located her.  This video footage was logged as evidence. 
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ARREST/CUSTODY:  Iyana M. Ransby, DOB: 05/12/04, and Vanessa M. Alvarado, DOB: 03/14/90, 
were mailed ordinance citations for Underage Person on License Premise. 

CASE STATUS/DISPOSITION:  Cleared by arrest 

RECORDING:  Axon body cam on 

END OF REPORT 9182
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A24052846

Reporting Officer: 9156 CONNOR CHRISTOPHERSON

Report Time: 11/10/2024 02:08:37

Incident 

Incident Nature
Disorderly Conduct

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
11/10/2024 02:08:37

Occurred To
11/10/2024 02:08:37

Received By
453 ANGELA OWENS

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
11/10/2024

Cleared Intrnl Inc. Sts
Ordinance Citation Issued

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9156 CONNOR CHRISTOPHERSON

9183 WILLIAM BERENS

9176 CASEY SPENCER

9113 DANIELLE BURKE

Case Numbers 

A24053130

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9156

Offenses 
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Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-9

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER

Persons 

AVERILL, MIA J
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
12/08/1999

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'03"

Weight
160

Narratives 

Original Narrative 11/11/2024 00:30:03

INVESTIGATION: 

On 11/10/24 at approximately 0208 hours, I, Officer Christopherson, was working uniformed patrol 
in the City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin. I was on foot patrol in the 400 block of W 
College Ave watching the bar crowd during bar closing time. 

I noticed a verbal disturbance between two groups of people outside of Mr. Frogs (409 W College 
Ave). Officers were splitting up the argument as a female, later identified with Wisconsin 
Identification card as Mia Averill, had come running eastbound down the sidewalk. As Mia was 
running, she struck an unidentified male in the back of the head with her right hand. She then 
continued to walk away from the scene. I stopped Mia and detained her by placing handcuffs 
behind her back with Officer Derge. We checked them for proper fit and safety locked them. We 
then brought Mia to Officer Berens squad where I searched her person and advised her she was 
being charged with Disorderly Conduct. While searching Mia, I located a plastic bag branded 
"Drench" that stated it contained cannabis. I later logged that package into evidence and queued it 
for destruction. Due to the large crowd gathering in the area, Officer Berens and I transported Mia 
to the Appleton Police Department. 

Once we arrived at the police department, I obtained Mia's ID out of her purse. As I was doing so 
Mia stated "That motherfucker, If I did do something, he needed to get hit 'casue he be fucking 
everybody's bitch" I then completed a citation for Disorderly Conduct (AC 10-9). I explained the 
citation to Mia and she had no further questions or concerns. Handcuffs were then removed from 
Mia and she was released from the police department.  

It should be noted the male Mia struck had left the scene prior to being identified. 
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VICTIM RIGHTS: 
N/A 

ARRESTS/CUSTODY INFORMATION: 
Mia J Averill DOB 12/08/1999 was issued a citation for Disorderly Conduct AC 10-9. Mia struck an 
unknown male in the back of the head after leaving a bar, acting in a violent, indecent, and 
disorderly manner.  

CASE STATUS: 
Closed with adult arrest 

RECORDING DEVICE: 
Axon in use 9156 

End of report 

Officer Christopherson 9156
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A24057701

Reporting Officer: 9193 BRYCE RUDEBECK

Report Time: 12/13/2024 23:06:04

Incident 

Incident Nature
Drug Complaint

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
12/13/2024 23:05:49

Occurred To
12/13/2024 23:09:02

Received By
436 KIMBERLY GLOEDE

How Received
911 Line

Contact
BRYAN

Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
12/13/2024

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Cleared By Arrest

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9148 SAMUEL VANDINTER

9193 BRYCE RUDEBECK

9133 YEELENG THOR

9112 THOMAS ZIEMAN

9182 BENJAMIN GOODIN

Circumstances
Code Comment

CONFINEMENT

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9193

Offenses 

Page 1 of 9

8/11/2025file:///C:/Users/allcoxci/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



All Other Offenses

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
946.49(1)(A)

Description 
MISDEMEANOR BAIL 
JUMPING

Category 
OTHER

Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
947.01(1)

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER

Destruction/Damage/Vandalism

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
943.01(1)

Description 
CRIMINAL DAMAGE TO 
PROPERTY

Category 
PROP

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

D
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Drug/Narcotic Violations

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
961.41(3G)(C)

Description 
POSSESSION OF COCAINE

Category 
DRUG

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

D

Criminal And Gang 

P

Persons 

Witness

Address Phone
( ) -

DOB

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height Weight
175

MR. FROGS
Victim

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON Wisconsin 54911

Phone
(920)364-0511

DOB

Race Sex Ethnicity
Unknown

Height Weight
0
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LITTLE, ANTHONY J JR
Witness

Address Phone DOB
10/15/1989

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'11"

Weight
158

GEORGE, SARAH M
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
09/02/1982

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'06"

Weight
220

MENDOZA, BRYAN R
Complainant

Address Phone DOB
11/30/2001

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
6'00"

Weight
240

Property 

Drug Evidence

Brand Model Serial Number

Color Quantity
.86

Total Value
$0.00

Measurement
Gram

Amount Recovered
$0.00

Date Recovered

Status
Seized

Owner
GEORGE, SARAH M
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Doorknob Damaged

Brand Model Serial Number

Color
Silver

Quantity
1

Total Value
$1.00

Measurement Amount Recovered
$0.00

Date Recovered

Status
Destroyed/Damaged/Vandalized

Owner
MR FROGS

Narratives 

Original Narrative 12/16/2024 07:26:02

OFFICER RUDEBECK REPORTING:  

On 12-13-2024 I, Officer Rudebeck #9193, was assigned to the College Avenue Detail from 2200-
0300. I was dressed in full uniform and in marked squad 956. At approximately 2306 hours, I was 
dispatched to a disturbance located at Mr. Frogs located at 409 W College Ave.  

Dispatch had indicated that a female was throwing bottles at the door of Mr. Frogs, had ripped off a 
door handle from the front entrance, and was trying to break a window. The reporting party had 
mentioned that the female suspect had left and had walked into Chadwicks located at413 W College 
Ave. While arriving on scene, dispatch had said the female suspect was white, heavier set, and was 
wearing a brown jacket.  

I located a female matching the description walking westbound in front of The Bar located at 427 W 
College Ave. The female was identified by a social security card and Spillman in-house as Sarah 
George. Sarah had claimed that while inside of Mr. Frogs, several males started to grab her and 
removed her from the bar. Sarah claimed she was unsure why the male parties had done this. 
Sarah insinuated that she was being targeted because she was a female. While I spoke with Sarah, 
she began to yell at other pedestrians and was swearing. Due to her continued behavior of doing 
this after I had told her to stop, Sarah was detained and was placed into handcuffs that were 
properly fitted and double locked. Sarah was escorted to a nearby squad so I could speak with the 
manager and an employee at Mr. Frogs.  

When I spoke with Bryan Mendoza, who was a manager at Mr. Frogs, I was told that Sarah had 
caused a disturbance inside of Mr. Frogs and that the bouncers including himself had removed 
Sarah from the bar. While Sarah was outside the bouncer who was verbally identified as Anthony 
Little, closed the door to prevent Sarah from coming back inside. Bryan said that Sarah had kicked 
the door and pulled on the door handle hard enough that the handle was ripped off. Bryan said that 
to repair the door it would cost approximately $1,000.00-$2,000.00. After the door handle was 
ripped off, Bryan had watched Sarah walk into Chadwicks with the door handle in her hand and 
shortly after exited Chadwicks and continued to walk westbound. Ofc. Vandinter #9148 had taken 
photos of the damaged door to Mr. Frogs and uploaded them to Axon Capture. Ofc. Thor #9133 
had informed me that there was video footage of the disturbance on traffic camera. Bryan said that 
he would email me video of the disturbance inside of Mr. Frogs at a later date.   

I spoke with Anthony who was a bouncer for Mr. Frogs and was told that he noticed that Sarah was 
pushing other customers and had thrown a drink. Anthony began to escort Sarah out and due to 
her refusing to leave the bar, Anthony had to wrap his arms around her to walk her out. Once 
Sarah was outside of the Mr. Frogs, Sarah began to kick the door, which was described as a mule 
kick by Athony. Anthony mentioned that Sarah had pulled onto the door handle of the front 
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entrance trying to open the door and had ripped off the door handle.  

I later arrived at Chadwicks and spoke with  who was identified verbally.  said 
that he recalled Sarah walking into the bar and noticed that she was holding a door handle.  
had told Sarah that she was not allowed in the bar and Sarah exited.  mentioned that Sarah 
had left the door handle inside of the bar and had later retrieved it and handed it to me. The door 
handle was later logged into BEAST for evidence.  

After I had finished speaking with  I was advised that Sgt. Zieman #9112 had located a 
small plastic baggie with a white powdery substance. Based on my training and experience, I 
believed that it was cocaine. Sgt. Zieman also mentioned that Sarah had an open case through 
Outagamie as well. For more information, please reference Ofc. Zieman's supplemental report. 
Sarah was later transported by Ofc. Thor #9133 and Ofc. Vandinter #9148. 

When I returned to the PD, I reviewed traffic cameras and observed Antony Little push Sarah out of 
Mr. Frogs at approximately 2304 hours. Anthony then closed the door and Sarah walked back up 
the steps and attempted to open the door. I observed the door open slightly due to how hard Sarah 
was pulling against the door while Anthony attempted to keep the door closed. Sarah then started 
to mule kick the door several times. After Sarah had kicked the door several times, Sarah again 
began to pull onto the door handle, which caused it to rip off. Sarah then lost her balance and fell 
down the stairs with the door handle in her hand. The video that I had observed was logged into 
evidence.  

END OF REPORT 

ARREST: Sarah M George, F/W, 09-02-1982, was arrested for the following charges:  

- Possession of Cocaine SS. 961.41(3G)(C) 
- Criminal Damage to Property SS. 943.01(1) 
- Misdemeanor Bail Jumping SS. 943.01(1) 
- Disorderly Conduct SS. 947.01(1) 

CASE STATUS: Cleared by arrest.  

RECORDING DEVICE: Axon on.

Supplemental 
Narrative

12/13/2024 23:26:19 9182 BENJAMIN 
GOODIN

A24057701 
B. Goodin 9182 
Supplement 

On 12/13/24 at approximately 2314 hours I arrived at College/Walnut as I saw Officer Rudebeck 
detaining a female suspect (Sarah George) in handcuffs.  There was a purse on the ground next to 
Sarah, and I heard Officer Rudebeck inform her that we would take possession of her purse.  Sgt. 
Zieman informed me Sarah was under arrest for Misdemeanor Bail Jumping. 

I began to search Sarah's purse incident to arrest.  There was a wallet inside the purse.  Within one 
of the wallet's compartments I observed a clear plastic corner cut baggie containing a white 
powdery substance I suspected to be illegal drugs (possibly cocaine).  Sgt. Zieman was next to me 
when I located the suspected drugs.  I turned the wallet and suspected drugs over to Sgt. Zieman. 

This concluded my involvement in this case. 
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Axon body camera on. 

END OF SUPPLEMENT 9182

Supplemental 
Narrative

12/13/2024 23:47:53 9112 THOMAS 
ZIEMAN

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 

On 12/13/24 at approximately 23:06, I, SSgt. Thomas Zieman #9112, 
responded to Mr. Frogs at 409 W. College Ave. for a reported disturbance along 
with Ofcs. Rudebeck #9193, VanDinter #9148, and Thor #9133. The initial 
information provided was that a "bigger" white female was acting wildly, and had 
pulled the door handle off of the entry door and was hitting it against the 
glass.  

Shortly after dispatch, Ofc. Rudebeck and I arrived on scene along with 
Ofc. VanDinter and Ofc. Thor shortly thereafter. As we were dismounting from my 
squad, a Dispatch provided an updated description that the female was now 
walking toward The Bar, near a male in a black and white jacket. It was at this 
time that we located a female party matching the given description and made 
contact with her on W. College Ave. at Walnut St.  

The female immediately made unsolicited remarks about being at Speak 
Easy and getting kicked out and pulling off the door handle, which she later 
clarified as actually being Mr. Frogs. As such, it was apparent that this was 
the suspect we were looking for. I asked the female for an ID, to which she 
ultimately provided to me her social security card. I then returned to my squad 
and subsequently identified her as ADULT OFFENDER Sarah George by social 
security number, WI DOT photo, and previous booking photo. I then checked WI 
CCCP and found that she had an open case under 2024CM000019 through Outagamie 
Co. with the specific bond information listed as active: 

01-08-2024 Signature bond signed for George, Sarah M.
$750.00 

Additional text: 
The defendant shall appear on all court dates; give written notice to the Clerk 
of Court  within 48 hours of any change of address or telephone number;  shall 
not commit any crime; shall neither directly nor indirectly threaten, harass, 
intimidate or otherwise interfere with victims or witnesses in this action.  
Call the Outagamie County Sheriff's Dept. at (920) 832-5633 within 48 hours for 
fingerprints and/or photos (to be completed within 21 days). The Defendant is to 
maintain absolute sobriety for pendency of case, except for prescribed 
medication. No Contact with JJ Maloney's Bar. 

Based on my previous contact with Sarah where I could plainly smell the 
odor of intoxicating beverages from her person, I determined she was in 
violation of her open bond. As such, I returned to Ofcs. Thor and Rudebeck, who 
already had Sarah detained and were securing her in the car. I informed them of 
the open case and my intention on arresting and confining her on the bail 
jumping, as she previously held a bench warrant for the same case several months 
prior, and therefore had a demonstrated history with not complying with 
bond/court orders.  
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Since Sarah was now in custody, Lt. Goodin #9182 began a search of her 
property, incident to arrest. As he was searching Sarah's wallet that she had 
earlier shown me with her cards in it, I saw a small, plastic tied off bag end 
containing a white powder inside one of the pockets in the wallet. Based on my 
training and experience as a drug detector K9 handler, I suspected that the 
baggie contained cocaine due to its composition and packaging. I then took the 
wallet from Lt. Goodin and completed the search, and later fielded tested the 
substance using Serchie cocaine field test wipe, which tested positive for the 
presence of cocaine. This item was retained and logged into APD as evidence. At 
the same time, I also assisted in logging in the door handle that Sarah had 
pulled off from Mr. Frogs as evidence.  

While conducting the drug component of the investigation, Ofcs. 
VanDinter and Rudebeck completed their investigation regarding the disorderly 
conduct and property damage committed by Sarah. See their reports for detail. 
After this was done, Sarah was then transported and booked into the Outagamie 
Co. Jail by Ofcs. Thor and VanDinter.  

END OF SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 

SSgt. Thomas Zieman #9112

Supplemental 
Narrative

12/14/2024 00:05:45 9133 YEELENG THOR

OFFICER THOR #9133 SUPPLEMENT: 

On 12/14/2024 at approximately 2305 hours, I, Officer Thor #9133, responded to 
assist officers for a disturbance at Mr. Frogs, 409 W College Ave. The call 
notes stated that a "bigger" female white was trying to break the window with a 
metal bar.  

As I arrived, additional call notes stated that the female was wearing a brown 
jacket and walking towards The Bar. I observed a female matching the description 
and exited my squad. I then told the female, later identified as Sarah George, 
stop after announcing that I was from the Appleton Police Department. Sarah 
stopped and Officer Rudebeck #9193 interviewed her while I checked traffic 
footage. I viewed Alta Aware traffic footage and later informed Officer Rudebeck 
that the incident was on the video footage.  

Sarah was detained in handcuffs by Officer Rudebeck due to her behavior. Sarah 
was placed in the rear of my squad. Sgt. Zieman then informed me that Sarah was 
under arrest as she violated her bond conditions. Sarah asked why she was under 
arrest and I informed her that she had an open Outagamie Court Case with a 
specific rule to maintain absolute sobriety. Sarah stated that was sober and 
requested a PBT. I administered a PBT which the result was .110.  

After completion of Officer Rudebeck's investigation, I transported Sarah to the 
Outagamie County Jail where was booked and released to jail staff. This ended my 
involvement with this incident.  

Axon was on. 

End of Supplement. 

Page 8 of 9

8/11/2025file:///C:/Users/allcoxci/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



Thor #9133 

CC: OCDA - Sarah M. George, DOB: 09/02/82 (posted 12/16/24 eld)

Supplemental 
Narrative

12/16/2024 06:53:22 9148 SAMUEL 
VANDINTER

Reporting Officer: S. Van Dinter #9148 
A24057701 

On 12/16/2024 at 23:06 PM while on duty for the City of Appleton Police Department I, Ofc. Van 
Dinter assisted on a damage complaint at Mr. Froggs, 409 W. College Ave. City of Appleton, 
Outagamie County, Wisconsin.  

Upon arrival I spoke with Anthony J. Little Jr; M/B DOB:10/15/1989, who is an employee for Mr. 
Froggs. Anthony stated the female, later identified as Sarah M. George, F/W DOB:09/02/1982, was 
talking to another unknown male patron in the tavern when she got upset and threw her beverage 
in his face. Anthony stated he escorted her out of the business after she refused to leave. Anthony 
stated once Sarah was outside she began kicking on the front access door to the business with her 
heel. Anthony stated Sarah then forcefully pulled the handle off the door causing damage without 
consent. Anthony stated Sarah also caused damage to the frame of the door. I took photographs of 
the damage and uploaded them to evidence.com. I issued a crime victim worksheet to the 
business.  

I assisted with confining Sarah at the Outagamie County Jail. I completed a probable cause 
statement on Ofc. Rudebeck's behalf.  

AXON: 9148 

END OF REPORT.  
OFC. VAN DINTER #9148 

CC: OCDA - Sarah M. George, DOB: 09/02/82 (12/16/24 eld)
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A24058849

Reporting Officer: 9139 RYAN BIFFERT

Report Time: 12/22/2024 01:15:18

Incident 

Incident Nature
Drug Complaint

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
12/22/2024 01:15:18

Occurred To
12/22/2024 01:15:18

Received By
435 JENNIFER DEBROUX

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
12/22/2024

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Cleared By Arrest

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9199 TURNER BOTZ

9139 RYAN BIFFERT

9147 BLAKE DERGE

9167 MASON BALLWEG

9156 CONNOR CHRISTOPHERSON

9170 KORI LOOKER

9104 DALTON LEHRER

Circumstances
Code Comment

CONFINEMENT

DRUG UNIT / ACISS

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9139

Offenses 
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All Other Offenses

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
946.49(1)(B)

Description 
FELONY BAIL JUMPING

Category 
OTHER

Non UCR Reportable

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
WARRANT-OA

Description 
WARRANT - OTHER AGENCY

Category 
OTHER

Non UCR Reportable

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
WARRANT OFFENSE

Description 
WARRANT OFFENSE

Category 
OTHER

All Other Offenses

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
946.49(1)(A)

Description 
MISDEMEANOR BAIL 
JUMPING

Category 
OTHER

All Other Offenses

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
946.41(1)

Description 
RESISTING OR 
OBSTRUCTING OFFICER

Category 
OTHER
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Drug/Narcotic Violations

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
961.41(1M)(CM)2

Description 
POSSESSION W/INTENT TO 
MANFUACTURE/DELIVER 
COCAINE >5<15G

Category 
DRUG

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

N

Criminal And Gang 

D

Persons 

HOWARD, JOSHUA L
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
08/08/1997

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'10"

Weight
180

Property 

Cash Seized

Brand Model Serial Number

Color Quantity
1

Total Value
$963.08

Measurement
No Drug Measure Reported

Amount Recovered
$0.00

Date Recovered

Status Owner
HOWARD, JOSHUA L
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Cocaine Evidence

Brand Model Serial Number

Color Quantity
14.70

Total Value
$0.00

Measurement
Gram

Amount Recovered
$0.00

Date Recovered

Status
Seized

Owner
HOWARD, JOSHUA L

Narratives 

Original Narrative 12/22/2024 23:14:53

On 12/22/2024 at approximately 0115 hrs. I, Officer Biffert # 9139, was working routine patrol in 
the City of Appleton, Outagamie County. I was wearing my police uniform and driving marked 
squad 1041. At around 0115 hrs., Lt. Botz #9199 observed Joshua Howard walk into Mr. Frogs 409 
W College Av. Appleton, WI 54911. Lt. Botz was aware of Joshua having warrants for his arrest. 
The warrants were subsequently verified to be valid with the Outagamie County Dispatch Center. I 
reviewed a photo of Joshua as well prior to making contact.  

Myself, Lt. Botz #9199 and Officer Ballweg #9167 then made contact with Joshua inside Mr. Frogs 
bar. I walked behind and past Joshua while Lt. Botz made contact with him. I heard Lt. Botz tell 
Joshua that he had a warrant and that he was under arrest. It should be noted that Joshua was in 
between Lt. Botz and I at that time. Joshua started to lift his arm like he was going to put it in his 
pocket. I then grabbed Joshua's left arm and held it in an escort position. It should be noted that 
Joshua was pulling away and trying to free his arm at that time. Joshua was escorted outside. Once 
outside Joshua was informed to put his hands behind his back and not to resist. Joshua continued 
to try to pull his left arm away from me. This forced me to have to physically force his left arm 
behind his back. While this was happening, due to Joshua's resistant behavior, he was stabilized on 
a nearby electrical box. I was then able to force both his left and right hands behind his back where 
I placed handcuffs on him behind his back. Joshua was escorted across College Av. towards the 
Performing Arts Center. I checked the handcuffs for proper fit and safety locked them at that time. 
I then completed a search incident to arrest. I located a baggie of white powdery substance in 
Joshua's left front coat pocket. I located a WI DL with Joshua's information on it in his left front 
jeans pocket. Also, in his left front jeans pocket was $963.08. I located multiple baggies of white 
powdery substance in Joshua's right front jeans pocket. Also in his right front pocket was an iPhone 
with a Kevin Durant phone case. All of Joshua's property was placed in a paper bag and released to 
Officer Ballweg at that time.  

Joshua was then placed in the rear right seat of squad 1041 and secured with the squad seatbelt. It 
should be noted that the rear seat of squad 1041 was searched before and after transport. Joshua 
was then transported to the Outagamie County Jail. Upon arrival, Joshua exited the squad, and I 
grabbed his left arm to maintain custody of him while he was in handcuffs. Joshua became upset 
with me for holding onto him and thrashed his arm in attempt to loosen my grip. Officer Derge 
#9147 and I then had to force Joshua to walk into the jail by assisting him forward. Due to 
Joshua's uncooperative behavior, he was handcuffed to the wall hook within the booking room. 
Outagamie County Jail staff then responded downstairs and took custody of Joshua.   

I requested the Outagamie County Dispatch Center to confirm Joshua's felony warrant out of the 
Appleton Police Department for Failure to Appear and a misdemeanor warrant from the Outagamie 
County Sheriff's Office for Failure to Appear. Both confirmation forms were attached to this report. 
While at the jail, a CCAP check was conducted on Joshua. Joshua had one open felony case ref 
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2024CF000458. Joshua had bond conditions stating that he shall not commit any crime. Also within 
the case was a misdemeanor charge of possession of illegally obtained prescription. The CCAP 
return was attached to this report.  

I was then notified by Officer Ballweg that the individual baggies containing the white powdery 
substance field tested positive for cocaine and the weight including the packaging was just under 
15g. Please see Officer Ballweg's supplement report for further details regarding details on the 
evidence.  

In total, Joshua was observed walking into Mr. Frogs. It was verified that he had valid warrants for 
his arrest that we could arrest him on. Contact was made with Joshua. Joshua was escorted out 
and was able to drop a baggie of white powder out of his pocket while being escorted out. This was 
observed by Officer Ballweg. Joshua resisted arrest by pulling away from officers requiring officers 
to force his hands behind his back. Joshua had multiple baggies of cocaine individually packaged 
and separated by size in different pockets. Joshua also had a large amount of cash on him. Based 
on my training and experience, Joshua was charged with possession with intent to distribute 
cocaine. The money located and phone on Joshua was seized for evidence.  

Arrest/Custody Information:  

Joshua was confined at OCJ on the following charges:  

* Felony bail jumping (946.49(1)(B))  
* Misdemeanor bail jumping (946.49(1)(A))  
* Resist/Obstruct Officer (946.41(1)) 
* Felony warrant for failure to appear (968.09(1)) 
* Misdemeanor warrant for failure to appear (968.09(1)) 
* Poss. with intent Cocaine 5-15g (961.41(1m)(cm)2)) 

Case Status and Disposition:  

Case is cleared by arrest.  

Recording Device:  

Axon active.   

Victim Information:  

None.  

End of report 

Officer Biffert #9139

Supplemental 
Narrative

12/22/2024 01:54:59 9167 MASON 
BALLWEG

Officer Ballweg Reporting #9167:  

On December 22nd, 2024, around 0115 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working uniformed 
patrol for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete police uniform with all required 
gear, such as an APD police badge on my chest to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-
issued Axon body-worn camera. I operated a marked APD patrol car with the identification number 
#1039. I responded to 409 W College Ave, Mr. Frogs, Appleton, WI 54911, Outagamie County. 
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Officer Biffert #9139 and Lt. Botz #9199 knew that Joshua Howard was inside of the establishment, 
and he had warrants for his arrest.   

I walked into Mr. Frogs with the other officers and positioned myself in a way that allowed me to 
view Officer Biffert and Lt. Botz make contact with Joshua at the bar. I could not hear what was 
said due to my distance, but I saw them lead Joshua outside. I was further behind them and as 
they took Joshua out the front door, I observed his right hand go into his right jean pocket. His 
hand was bladed when it entered the pocket. He then immediately withdrew his hand, and I saw it 
was now in a fist. He then opened his hand and dropped something onto the ground. I was right 
behind them at that point and saw that it small plastic baggie Joshua had dropped. I picked up the 
baggie and observed a white powdery substance inside of it. I maintained scene security, while 
Officer Biffert and Lt. Botz took Joshua into custody. Several people approached and were upset 
that we had arrested Joshua.   

Joshua was walked toward Officer Biffert's squad and a search was conducted by Officer Biffert. 
Officer Biffert showed me he had located similar baggies of white powder on Joshua's person. 
Officer Biffert also located $963.08 on Joshua's person. I collected the items located and 
transported them to the police department. The items were placed in a paper bag and remained in 
the paper bag until I arrived at the police department. At that point I laid out all of Joshua's 
personal property. The items were the following: One Breeze Vape device, a set of car keys, a WI 
DL for Joshua Howard, one black iPhone 14 or 15, $963.08, glasses and four tied off baggies 
containing an unknown white powder. The four baggies matched the baggie that Joshua had 
dropped on the ground.  

The $963.08 was made up of three $100, one $50, Twenty seven $20, six $10, two $5, two $1. 
There was also three penny's, one nickel and four quarters. I counted the money and it was when 
counted and confirmed by Officer Biffert. 

I utilized the TruNarc Handheld Narcotics Analyzer to test the unknown white powder. I performed 
a self-check (5217). I then tested the largest bag of the white powder, which weighed 5.99 grams 
with packaging. The bag tested positive for Cocaine (5218). Another self-check was completed 
(5219). All testing was conducted according to my training. The other four bags of Cocaine 
weighed: 1.48 grams, 1.75 grams, 1.72 grams, and 3.75 grams. The total weight of all the baggies 
weighed 14.70 grams. I informed Officer Biffert of my findings.  

The five individual packaged baggies of Cocaine and amount of money that Joshua had on his 
person led me to believe that he was selling the Cocaine. Joshua also tried to drop one of the 
baggies, which showed that he knew the bags contained an illegal substance that he did not want 
us to find on his person. The Cocaine, $963.08 and the phone were logged into evidence. The rest 
of the items were placed in Joshua's property at Outagamie County jail. I will be writing a search 
warrant for Joshua's phone.  

Axon Recording  

End of Supplement #9167

Supplemental 
Narrative

12/23/2024 00:07:38 9199 TURNER BOTZ

LIEUTENTANT BOTZ REPORTING #9199 

On 12/22/2024 at approximately 0115 hours, I was working as a fully uniformed Patrol Lieutenant 
for the Appleton Police Department. While working in this capacity, I observed a male who I knew 
from prior Law Enforcement experience to be Joshua Howard enter Mr. Frogs located at 409 West 
College Avenue in the City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin. I was aware Joshua had 
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active warrants out for is arrest. Officer Biffert was with me at this time and I informed him of 
Joshua and his active warrants. Officer Biffert began arranging other units to respond to assist 
while I confirmed with the Outagamie County Dispatch Center that Joshua still had active warrants 
out for his arrest. Joshua's warrants were confirmed to still be active.  

Officer Biffert, Officer Ballweg and I entered Mr. Frogs where we were able to locate Joshua. I made 
contact with Joshua and told him he was under arrest due to his active warrants. Initially, Joshua 
was hesitant to want to exit the bar and stated he did not have any warrants. I again told Joshua 
he was under arrest. It was at this time I observed Joshua begin to try and use his left hand to 
reach for something inside his front left pants pocket. I told Joshua to stop reaching for things and 
to exit the bar with Officers. I grabbed Joshua's right arm to begin trying to escort him out of the 
bar. Do to the large amount of people who had surrounded us and were watching what was 
occurring, I let go of Joshua's right hand to turn my body around to begin leading Joshua and other 
Officers out of the bar. Prior to letting go of Joshua's right arm, I confirmed Officer Biffert 
maintained control of Joshua's left arm. 

Once Joshua and Officers were outside, I again gained control of Joshua's right arm. It was again 
verbalized to Joshua that he was under arrest and for him to bring his hands behind his back. I was 
able to transition Joshua's right hand to the small of his back where he was then properly 
handcuffed. During this process, I heard Officer Biffert tell Joshua to stop resisting. Once Joshua 
was handcuffed, he was walked to a nearby squad car. Prior to being placed in the squad, Officer 
Biffert completed a search of Joshua. I remained on scene until Joshua was fully searched and 
placed in the back of a squad car. At that time, I had no further involvement with this incident.  

END OF SUPPLEMENT 
LIEUTENANT BOTZ REPRORTING #9199

Supplemental 
Narrative

12/23/2024 06:22:19 9167 MASON 
BALLWEG

Officer Ballweg Supplement #9167:  

On December 23rd, 2024, around 0610 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working uniformed 
patrol for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete police uniform with all required 
gear, such as an APD police badge on my chest to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-
issued Axon body-worn camera. I operated a marked APD patrol car with the identification number 
#1039. I went to the Outagamie County Jail to attempt to speak with Joshua Howard. Joshua was 
still in a booking cell as he had not spoken to correction deputies since he had been booked in.  

I spoke with Joshua through the serving door of the cell. I explained to him why I was there and 
informed him that I had seized his phone and would be writing a search warrant for his phone. I 
asked if he would provide me with the password for the phone. He refused. I asked if he was 
interested in me reading him Miranda to talk about the incident and he told me he did not want to 
speak to me. I did not speak with him further.  

Axon Recording  

End of Supplement #9167 

cc: OCDA Joshua L Howard, DOB: 08/08/1997 (confined 12/23/24 pjh)
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Supplemental 
Narrative

12/28/2024 13:34:23 9524 FALYNNE 
GERISCH

On 12/28/2024 I, Forensic Evidence Specialist Falynne Gerisch, was asked by Ofc Ballweg to 
complete a fentanyl test on the substance from item 2. Based on information he received; he 
wanted to see if there was fentanyl present.  

I retrieved item 2. I completed the fentanyl field test that utilizes a swab, a buffer solution and a 
test strip. When opening item 2, there were 5 baggies present with a white powdery substance. 1 
of the baggies appeared to have a more yellowish appearance. I selected that one and the larger 
bag with white powder to field test. I laid down a clean sheet of butcher paper in the fume hood 
before beginning. I also changed gloves between each test.  

The following is the process of how these 2 baggies were tested: I opened the baggie, placed the 
swab into the buffer solution to wet the swab slightly, then dabbed up some of the substance from 
inside the baggie. The swab was placed into the buffer solution and left to sit for a minute. Then 
the test strip was placed into the buffer solution. After a short time, I removed the strip. Looking at 
the strip, it had 2 lines on it. According to the key, 2 lines indicates a negative result. This was the 
case with both tests that I completed.  

Mobile detect results will be attached. Ofc Ballweg was informed of the results.  

End of report. Gerisch 9524 

cc: OCDA Joshua L Howard, DOB: 08/08/1997 (01/02/25 pjh)

Supplemental 
Narrative

01/05/2025 21:26:39 9167 MASON 
BALLWEG

Officer Ballweg Supplement #9167:  

On January 6th, 2025, around 0908 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working uniformed patrol 
for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete police uniform with all required gear, 
such as an APD police badge on my chest to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-
issued Axon body-worn camera. I operated a marked APD patrol car with the identification number 
#1015. I met with Outagamie County on-call Judge Lonergan of Branch two. Judge Lonergan 
signed the search warrant for Joshua's phone. The original signed warrant was provided to records 
and scanned into the report. Investigation will remain active, while I wait for phone records.   

Axon Recording  

End of Supplement #9167 

cc: OCDA Joshua L Howard, DOB: 08/08/1997 (01/20/25 pjh)
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A24059225

Reporting Officer: 9170 KORI LOOKER

Report Time: 12/26/2024 01:17:08

Incident 

Incident Nature
Probation Violation

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
12/26/2024 01:16:48

Occurred To
12/26/2024 01:18:04

Received By
435 JENNIFER DEBROUX

How Received
911 Line

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
12/26/2024

Cleared Intrnl Inc. Sts
Ordinance Citation Issued

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9199 TURNER BOTZ

9170 KORI LOOKER

9147 BLAKE DERGE

9167 MASON BALLWEG

9190 HRUBY IZABELLA

Circumstances
Code Comment

CONFINEMENT

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9170

AXON

Offenses 
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Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-9

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER

All Other Offenses

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
973.10(1)

Description 
PROBATION VIOLATION

Category 
OTHER

Persons 

CASHAW, JARON K SR
Contact

Address Phone DOB
07/26/1993

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'06"

Weight
180

BASS, TRACY M
Adult Offender

Address Phone
( ) -

DOB

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'09"

Weight
140

Narratives 

Original Narrative 12/26/2024 06:06:19
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On 12/26/24 at approximately 01:17 hours, I, Officer Looker 9170, was dispatched to Mr. Frogs at 
409 W College Ave for a male that was laying outside that business that needed an ambulance. 
Upon arrival, I found Tracy Bass on his knees outside the entrance to Mr. Frogs. Tracy had a red 
substance that appeared to be blood, based on my police training and experience, on his snow 
pants and hands. Tracy was holding his hand out and I saw that his middle finger on his right hand 
had a open wound and had what appeared to look like bone showing.  

I requested a medic, and medic 7 took Tracy and brought him to St. E's. 

Officer Derge 9147 spoke with the bouncer, Jaron Cashaw, and Mr. Frog's employees. Officer Derge 
9147 also received video surveillance footage from bar staff of the disturbance between Tracy and 
Jaron. Please see Officer Derge's 9147 supplement for more information. 

Officer Derge 9147 showed me the video surveillance footage. In the footage, Tracy is seen 
entering the bar and the bouncer, Jaron, was attempting to escort Tracy out. Tracy then used an 
open palm to strike Jaron near the face region. Jaron then "threw" Tracy out of the bar, where 
Tracy then hurt his hand.  

Please see Officer Derge's supplement for information on his conversation with the bouncer, Jaron. 

Based upon the video surveillance footage, the information provided by Officer Derge from Jaron, I 
cited Tracy an ordinance violation for Disorderly Conduct. I noticed Tracy was on probation and had 
several rules: 

 
    
       
       
       
    
       
      
       
       
    
       
      
   
    
       
       

Tracy broke DOC rule SP 014 DV as he engaged in physical behavior that was violent in nature, SP 
023 SU - as he was on the premise of an establishment whose primary purpose was the sale or 
distribution of alcohol, including but not limited to bars, taverns, liquor stores, and beer tents. I 
called DOC After Hours who requested a hold on Tracy. 

I went to St. E's and advised Tracy of his Disorderly Conduct ordinance violation and of his 
probation hold. Tracy's finger was taken care of by medical staff, and he was medically cleared. I 
placed handcuffs on Tracy in the front due to his finger injury, and checked them for fit. I then 
safety locked the handcuffs. I searched Tracy prior to placing him in the back of my squad. Nothing 
was found on Tracy. I transported Tracy to OCJ where he was transferred over to jail staff. 

CASE STATUS/DISPOSITION: 
CAA 

ARREST/CUSTODY STATUS: 
Tracy Bass was confined at OCJ for a Probation Violation. I provided Tracy a Disorderly Conduct 
ordinance violation. 
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VICTIM INFO: 
Jaron Cashaw did not want to press charges and did not want victim info sheets.  

RECORDING DEVICE: 
Axon 9170 

END OF REPORT 
Officer Looker 9170

Supplemental 
Narrative

12/26/2024 01:41:39 9147 BLAKE DERGE

OFFCER DERGE #9147 SUPPLEMENT: 

On 12/26/2024 at approximately 0117 hours, I, Officer Derge #9147 with the Appleton Police 
Department, responded to Mr. Frogs, located at 409 W College Ave, Appleton, Outagamie County, 
WI, for a 911 misdial. The RP, later identified as Tracy Bass, reported he had been at a bar on 
college and was pushed down. Lt Botz #9199 advised he observed on traffic camera footage a male 
on the ground outside of the bar.  

Upon arrival, I observed Tracy sat near the stairs to the entrance of Mr Frogs. I noticed Tracy had 
been bleeding from his right hand. His middle finger appeared to be out of place, there was a 1 inch 
laceration was bleeding, and there was swelling around the injury location. Medical was requested 
at that time. I then turned my attention to a male, identified via WI ID as Jaron Cashaw, who 
stated he was the bouncer working.  

Jaron informed me Tracy had come to the bar an hour prior and was denied entry as he did not 
have an ID. Tracy later entered the bar without Jaron's knowledge. When Jaron noticed Tracy in the 
bar, he told Tracy to leave. Tracy refused to leave. Jaron escorted Tracy by his arm. Tracy began to 
resist this action to guide him out of the bar. Tracy then began to grab at Jaron. When they were 
near the front door, Tracy pushed Jaron's face with an open hand. Jaron then pushed Tracy out of 
the business.  

Jaron stated Tracy did not cause him pain. Jaron did not wish to pursue charges. Jaron provided 
camera footage of the incident. The camera footage was consistent with Jaron's statement. Video 
was obtained and uploaded via Axon Capture. 

Tracy was brought to St Elizabeth's Hospital where he was treated for his injuries. While at the 
hospital, I assisted Officer Looker #9170 in taking Tracy into custody where he was later 
transported to OCJ for a probation violation. 

AXON: recording 

End of Supplement 

Officer Derge #9147 

cc: P/P - abraham.auer@wisconsin.gov 12/26/24 #9529/AB
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A25007115

Reporting Officer: 9167 MASON BALLWEG

Report Time: 02/16/2025 01:37:24

Incident 

Incident Nature
Disturbance

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
02/16/2025 01:37:24

Occurred To
02/16/2025 01:37:24

Received By
430 JASON MARTILLA

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
02/16/2025

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Cleared By Arrest

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related
N

Responding Officer(s) 

9147 BLAKE DERGE

9134 CHARLES ALLEN

9183 WILLIAM BERENS

9167 MASON BALLWEG

9119 TYRELL WEST

Circumstances
Code Comment

CONFINEMENT

USE OF FORCE

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON

Offenses 
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All Other Offenses

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
973.10(1)

Description 
PROBATION VIOLATION

Category 
OTHER

All Other Offenses

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
946.41(1)

Description 
RESISTING OR 
OBSTRUCTING OFFICER

Category 
OTHER

Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
947.01(1)

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER

Identity Theft

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
943.201(2)(B)

Description 
MISAPPROPRIATE ID INFO - 
AVOID PENALTY

Category 
FRAUD

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

N

Persons 
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MUNOZ, SANDRA M
Contact

Address Phone DOB
07/20/1984

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'05"

Weight
145

BOWDEN, CLEA A
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
06/18/1993

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'04"

Weight
185

Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'06"

Weight
145

Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
6'03"

Weight
225
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Victim

Address Phone DOB

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'06"

Weight
145

ALVARADO, VANESSA M
Contact

Address Phone DOB
03/14/1990

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'01"

Weight
160

Property 

Identification Stolen

Brand Model Serial Number

Color Quantity
1

Total Value
$0.00

Measurement Amount Recovered
$0.00

Date Recovered

Status
Stolen, Not Recovered

Owner

Narratives 

Original Narrative 02/17/2025 16:07:47

Officer Ballweg Reporting #9167:  

On February 16th, 2025, around 0137 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working uniformed 
patrol for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete police uniform with all required 
gear, such as an APD police badge on my chest to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-
issued Axon body-worn camera. I operated a marked APD patrol car with the identification number 
#1015. I was on foot at the intersection of W College Ave and N Division St in Appleton, WI 54911, 
Outagamie County. Officer Berens #9183 and I observed a crowd starting to form in front of 409 W 
College Ave, Mr. Frogs, Appleton, WI 54911, Outagamie. We could hear people in the crowd talking 
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about fighting.   

We walked over toward the crowd, and I was able to identify  and  
based on prior incidents.  and  appeared to being trying to get people in the crowd 
to walk away from one another. Once we were next to the crowd,  asked me to have a 
female, later identified as Clea Bowden, walk away from the rest of the people.  told me 
that Clea was trying to fight other people in the crowd. I requested that  and  have 
the people they were with walk away and  refused to do that. I spoke with Clea and asked 
her to walk away from the group. Clea asked if I could give her the names of the people in the 
group. I explained to Clea that I could not give her that information and asked her to walk away 
from the scene to avoid an escalation of issues. She then asked what would happen if she would 
"demolish" the other individuals and I informed her that she would then be arrested if she started a 
physical fight.   

The other people kept arguing and continued to yell about Clea. Clea and another female started to 
walk toward each other, so I put myself between them and put a hand on Clea's shoulder to keep 
her away from the other female, since Clea had already made the statement regarding 
"demolishing" the other individuals. I continued to tell Clea to walk away and Clea stepped back 
from me and the other people. I then watched her plant her feet, remove her jacket and drop it to 
the ground. As she did that, I saw her staring over my shoulder at the female that had been 
arguing with her. Clea started to walk toward me while staring at the other female. Based on Clea 
dropping her coat and doing what I knew to be a thousand yard stare, both of which was pre-attack 
postures, I believed Clea was going to assault the female. I grabbed Clea by both her shoulders 
and stepped in front of her. She continued to try to push past me and turn her shoulders, which I 
believed was her attempted to break my grip. I then started to push her back and she continued to 
try to move forward. At that point, I could hear louder yelling behind me and was concerned about 
other individuals involving themself. I determined that I would be unable to effectively detain Clea 
while she was standing, since she was not cooperating with me. I put my right foot behind her legs 
and utilized a modified leg wheel to decentralize her. As I did that my left foot slipped on ice and 
snow that was on the sidewalk. Clea landed on her back, and I landed on my right side. Officer 
Beren's and I were able to move Clea to her stomach and attempted to bring her arms behind her 
back, while giving her commands to put her arms behind her back. Clea straighten her arms and 
originally prevented us from placing her arms behind her back. We were eventually able to get her 
arms behind her back, but I could feel that her arms were tensed the entire time.   

Clea was secured into handcuffs, and the handcuffs were checked for fit and double locked. Clea 
told me that she had been attacked and that she did not do anything. Clea had not mentioned 
being attacked when I was asking her to leave the area. We stood her up and started to walk her to 
a squad across the street. The other involved female left the area while officers were with Clea.  I 
informed Clea that she was under arrest. Clea told us that her knee was injured and then started to 
limp. She had not been limping prior to that. We asked if she needed medical attention, and she 
requested an ambulance. I wanted to remove Clea from the avenue to prevent any further issues, 
so Gold Cross was requested to meet us at the Appleton Police Department. I searched Clea and 
she was placed in my squad car. Clea's property was held by Officer Allen #9134. I transported 
Clea to the Appleton Police Department.  

While at the police department, I asked Clea to identify herself and she originally refused to do so. 
There was no form of identification located in her property. Clea told me her identification had been 
stolen. Clea eventually verbally identified herself as . She provided an address that 
matched the DOT return for  which had been updated in 2024. The DOT was similar. It was 
later discovered that Clea was not  and had falsely identified herself. Clea made several 
statements about how officers would burn for what they were doing. She informed us that it was a 
promise. Clea also explained that she had been attacked inside of Mr. Frogs. She had been struck 
three times. Clea was unable to provide any specific information regarding that incident.   

Medical services arrived to assess Clea and Clea explained that her knee was out of place due to 
the incident. Medical applied pressure to Clea's knee and she did not react. Medical asked her what 
injury she had, since she was not reacting and she became uncooperative with and refused further 
treatment. I transported Clea to the Outagamie County jail. When walking her into the booking 
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room, Clea was walking without issue and attempted to pull away from me again. Clea did not start 
limping again until after the handcuffs were removed. Clea was originally confined under the name 
of    

Shortly after that, I was contacted by correction deputies, who informed me that Clea was not 
 There had been several people call the jail asking about a Clea and when talking on the 

phone Clea said "It's Clea, I mean  I reviewed a prior booking photo for Clea and Clea's 
Facebook https://www.facebook.com/Itzmebytch. Correction deputies and I agreed it was actually 
Clea. Clea was on parole. I contacted the after-hours and advised them of the situation. After-hours 
advised that Clea would be placed on a hold.   

On February 16th, 2025, around 1930 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working uniformed 
patrol for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete police uniform with all required 
gear, such as an APD police badge on my chest to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-
issued Axon body-worn camera. I operated a marked APD patrol car with the identification number 
#1015. I attempted to contact  to see if she had given Clea consent to falsely use her 
information. I was unable to get in contact with  by the phone numbers that I located for her. 
I left voicemails and will wait for a response.   

The camera footage of the incident on Avigilon and Alta Aware was bookmarked and logged into 
evidence.  

Officer Allen #9134 had completed his supplement and ended his shift before Clea was correctly 
identified. When he referred to  in his supplement, that was actually Clea.   

Axon Recording  

Arrest/ Custody: Clea A Bowden DOB: 06/18/1993  

Clea was confined at the Outagamie County jail for Disorderly Conduct WI SS 947.01(1), Resisting/ 
Obstructing WI SS 946.41(1) and a probation hold WI SS 973.10(1).  

Status: Cleared by arrest  

Victim Services: N/A  

End of Report #9167 

02/17/2025 Janssen 9508 cc: P&P tracy.tallier@wisconsin.gov

Supplemental 
Narrative

02/16/2025 02:26:31 9134 CHARLES ALLEN

Supplement 

On Sunday, February 16, 2025 at 0135 hours, I, Officer Charles Allen 9134, was 
assigned to the College Avenue detail from 2200-0300 hours, in a marked squad 
car, and body camera activated.  I was standing in the 400 block of W. College 
Avenue near a group of people.  There was a black female, wearing a black jacket 
and black hat standing near the group and the group had indicated they wanted 
her to walk away from them; the female was later identified as .  
At one point, the group had someone trying to keep the parties separated and 
Officer Ballweg had tried talking with  and the group to keep them 
separated.   then started to walk towards the group and Officer Ballweg 
stepped in between.   then took off her jacket, in what appeared to be a 
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preattack posture, and then tried going around Officer Ballweg, lunging towards 
the group. 

Officer Ballweg and  then went to the ground.  I assisted in securing her 
legs as she was trying to kick her legs out. After  was taken into custody, 
she was escorted across College Avenue.  coat and property were secured in 
my squad car. I requested Gold Cross Ambulance meet officers at the police 
department as  complained of leg pain.  I followed Officer Ballweg to the 
police department.   was checked on by Appleton FD and GCA and taken to the 
Outagamie County Jail.  I assisted in completing booking paperwork and  was 
released to jail staff.  End of supplement, 9134. CEA 

cc: OCDA - Clea Antwonette Bowden, DOB: 06/18/1993 (confined 02/17/2025 SLK)

Supplemental 
Narrative

02/20/2025 19:49:06 9167 MASON 
BALLWEG

Officer Ballweg Reporting #9167:  

On February 20th, 2025, around 1900 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working 
uniformed patrol for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete 
police uniform with all required gear, such as an APD police badge on my chest 
to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-issued Axon body-worn 
camera. I operated a marked APD patrol car with the identification number #1015. 
I received a voicemail from a female identifying herself as . In 
the voicemail,  explained that it was likely her sister, Clea Bowden, who 
had used her information.   

At 1938 hours, I was able to make contact with  I explained the incident 
to her and how Clea had identified herself as   informed me that she 
did not give Clea consent to use her information to avoid punishment and wanted 
to be a victim.  lived outside of Appleton and was currently working. I 
verbally identified her over the phone with her birthday and current address. 
The phone number that she was calling from was also confirmed to be  
through TLO.  opted out of services. Lt. Edwards #9216 approved me mailing 

 a victim packet.  

Clea was no longer in custody at the time of my conversation with  I will 
be referring Clea for an additional charge of Misappropriate ID information- 
avoid penalty WI SS 943.201(2)(B). Clea intentionally used  personal 
identifying information by telling me that she was  and provided 
her address. She did so to avoid the penalty associated with committing a crime 
while on parole and the other charges she was receiving. She did so without the 
consent of    

Axon Recording  

Arrest/ Custody: Clea A Bowden DOB: 06/18/1993   

Clea was referred for Misappropriate ID information- avoid penalty WI SS 
943.201(2)(B).  

Status: Cleared by arrest   

Victim Services: N/A   
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End of Report #9167  

cc: OCDA - Clea Antwonette Bowden, DOB: 06/18/1993 SUP#2 (referred new charge 
02/21/2025 SLK)

Supplemental 
Narrative

03/01/2025 21:27:50 9167 MASON 
BALLWEG

Officer Ballweg Reporting #9167:  

On March 1st, 2025, around 2115 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working 
uniformed patrol for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete 
police uniform with all required gear, such as an APD police badge on my chest 
to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-issued Axon body-worn 
camera. I was operating my marked patrol squad #1015. I responded to 409 W 
College Ave, Mr. Frogs, Appleton, WI 54911, Outagamie County. I had received a 
request for follow up from the Outagamie County District Attorney's office. They 
were requested I check if Mr. Frogs had any camera footage of the incident.   

I spoke with a staff member, who informed me that the only person able to view 
the cameras was Sandra Munoz. While I was at the establishment, I observed that 
there did not appear to be any cameras inside of the building that were pointing 
outside and the exterior camera at the front appeared to be pointed away from 
the sidewalk and back toward the interior of the building. I called Sandra and 
she informed me that she did not have access to the cameras and provided me with 
the information for Vanessa Alvardo. Vanessa was the owner of the establishment 
and would be able to review footage with me.   

I eventually spoke with Vanessa, who informed me that she was the only one with 
access to the cameras. They saved the camera footage for approximately one 
month. She went on to explain that she would not have a good time that she would 
be able to review the camera footage with me and also mentioned that there were 
not any cameras that would have shown the sidewalk in front of the business. The 
only exterior camera was angled toward the front to make sure that bouncers were 
checked identification. I sent her an AXON community upload link and requested 
that she send all of the camera footage from 0130 till 0140 hours for 2/16/25. 
She informed me that she would upload the footage when possible. Once the 
footage is uploaded a further supplement will be completed.   

Vanessa and Sandra were identified verbally over the phone.  

Axon Recording  

End of Supplement #9167 

cc: OCDA - Clea Antwonette Bowden, DOB: 06/18/1993 SUP#3 (03/03/2025 SLK)

Supplemental 
Narrative

03/05/2025 18:40:40 9167 MASON 
BALLWEG
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Officer Ballweg Reporting #9167:  

On March 5th, 2025, around 1900 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working 
uniformed patrol for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete 
police uniform with all required gear, such as an APD police badge on my chest 
to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-issued Axon body-worn 
camera. I was operating my marked patrol squad #1015. I had received 
confirmation that Vanessa had uploaded three videos via the Axon Community Link. 
I reviewed that videos and saw that the videos were from 0130, 0145, and 0200, 
on February 16th, 2025. The videos are not able to capture any of the 
disturbance outside of the bar. The camera at 0130 hours showed  
and  speaking with the unidentified female that had later left the 
scene. Clea was not seen in the camera footage provided.   

Axon Recording  

End of Supplement #9167 

cc: OCDA - Clea Antwonette Bowden, DOB: 06/18/1993 SUP#4 (03/06/2025 SLK)
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A25009721

Reporting Officer: 9167 MASON BALLWEG

Report Time: 03/03/2025 02:08:13

Incident 

Incident Nature
Disturbance

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
03/03/2025 02:08:01

Occurred To
03/03/2025 02:08:54

Received By
430 JASON MARTILLA

How Received
911 Line

Contact Disposition
Pending

Disposition Date Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Mailed Ordinance Summons

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9167 MASON BALLWEG

9171 JACKSON READER

9124 JOSEPH BASAK

9208 OWEN GEURTS

9114 BRADY FELMER

9158 SAMUEL VASSAR

9119 TYRELL WEST

9183 WILLIAM BERENS

9176 CASEY SPENCER

9190 HRUBY IZABELLA

Case Numbers 

A25010274

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON
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Offenses 

Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-9

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER

Simple Assault

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-9 BATTERY

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT 
BATTERY

Category 
OTHER

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

A

Criminal And Gang 

N

Weapons 

40

Persons 
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Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'02"

Weight
160

NIETO, JOSEPH
Victim/Offender

Address Phone DOB
03/21/1993

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'07"

Weight
190

JIMENEZ, MICHAEL
Victim/Offender

Address Phone DOB
05/08/1998

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'06"

Weight
155

PEREZ, MARIO R
Victim/Offender

Address Phone DOB
12/08/1997

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'06"

Weight
174
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Complainant

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
6'04"

Weight
300

LIMA PEDRAZA, ROLANDO A
Victim/Offender

Address Phone DOB
08/22/1996

Race Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'08"

Weight
150

TIERRABLANCA, NAYELI R
Contact

Address Phone DOB
08/19/2003

Race Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'05"

Weight
145

ALVARADO, VANESSA M
Owner

Address Phone DOB
03/14/1990

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'01"

Weight
160
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Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'06"

Weight
170

Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'04"

Weight
115

Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
6'00"

Weight
180

Narratives 

Original Narrative 03/06/2025 02:57:45

Officer Ballweg Reporting #9167:  

On March 3rd, 2025, around 0208 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working uniformed patrol 
for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete police uniform with all required gear, 
such as an APD police badge on my chest to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-
issued Axon body-worn camera. I was operating my marked patrol squad #1015. I was dispatched 
to 409 W College, Mr. Frogs, Appleton, WI 54911, Outagamie County for a physical disturbance 
taking place outside of the establishment. One of the people was being kicked and it was also in the 
middle of the roadway. Due to the nature of a physical disturbance, I responded to the scene with 
my emergency lights and my siren active. As I was arriving at the scene, Officer Basak #9124 
informed responding officers that the individuals involved were going back into to the bar. I 
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believed it was likely that individuals would attempt to flee from the back door of the bar. I pulled 
into the alleyway behind the bar and did not locate anyone.   

Officer Geurts #9208 and I walked into the bar and made contact with Michael Jimenez. He was in 
the bathroom of Mr. Frogs and after several knocks on the door, he walked out. I observed that 
Michael's collar appeared to be torn. We asked Michael to speak with us and he started to walk 
away. We told him to identify himself and he continued to walk away. Michael was placed into 
handcuffs and Officer Geurts removed him to the bar. See Officer Geurts supplement.   

Officers had everyone else remain inside the bar. We identified , Mario Perez, Rolando 
Lima Pedraza,  and Michael Mason. The bartender was Nayeli 
Tierrablanca.   

 informed officers that he was waiting for Nayeli to be done with work because he was 
taking her home. He had not been involved in the disturbance and did not really know why it had 
occurred.  would later be released without any citations.  

Rolando and  did not provide a statement as to what happened.   

 and  originally stated that they were in the bathroom and did not see the disturbance. 
They had been coming out of the bathroom as I walked into the bar. After reviewing camera 
footage, it was determined that  and  were not actively fighting but had observed the 
entire fight.  had been recording the disturbance on her phone, which I could see on the 
traffic camera footage. I confronted  about the footage, and she informed me that she had 
deleted the video. I continued to speak with her about it and she refused to show me the video 
footage on the phone. I advised that I knew she was not actively involved, I just wanted to get all 
the footage of the disturbance. She continued to refuse to provide me the footage. I informed her 
that I would seize her phone and write a warrant for it, if she refused to provide us with the 
footage. At that point she was willing to show us the footage on her phone.  was observed in 
all of the footage attempting to separate the involved parties.   

Officer Felmer #9114 and I had spoken with  and eventually took him into custody for an 
unrelated warrant. The warrant was documented under A25009722.   

At that point, I reviewed the Alta Aware footage from the camera on N Division St. The following 
was observed.   

A male, later identified as Joseph Nieto, walks out of the bar. He took off his jacket and throw it 
away from himself. He then turned around toward Michael, who can be seen following him out of 
the bar. Michael appeared to swing at Joseph as Joseph swung at Michael. They started to fight, 
and Joseph fell to the ground. Michael gets on top of Joseph and continued to hit him as Mario and 
Rolando inserted themselves into the fight. They originally appeared to be trying to pull Michael 
away from Joseph, but as they are fighting on the ground, Mario kicked at Joseph's back. They 
eventually got back on their feet. Joseph had a hold of Michael's shirt, which was likely why it was 
stretched out. Rolando and Mario are holding Joseph and continued to pull him away from Michael. 
Michael hit Joseph several more times and then they separated. Nayeli was also outside and 
appeared to be telling Joseph to walk away. Joseph continued to point toward Michael, Mario and 
Rolando. Suzette pulled Rolando back toward the front door and eventually everyone except Joseph 
goes back inside. Joseph then went back to the front door, and it appeared that he yelled into the 
bar.   

Mario and Rolando come outside of the bar again. Rolando took off his shirt as Mario and him 
continued to approach Joseph. Joseph backed into the street and Michael also exited the bar. 
Joseph then punched Mario in the face and started to swing at Rolando. Michael took off his shirt 
and Michael, Mario and Rolando started to hit Joseph. Joseph eventually fell to the ground and 
Michael continued to hit him. It appeared that Rolando was talking to Joseph and Joseph hit 
Rolando. Joseph and Rolando threw several more punches at one another. All parties eventually 
separated, and Joseph was the only one outside of the bar as law enforcement arrived.   
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Based on the videos, I determined that Mario, Rolando, Michael and Joseph would all be receiving 
citations for their actions in the disturbance. They all appeared to be mutual combatants in a 
physical disturbance that took place on the avenue. I spoke to Joseph about the incident.   

I observed a cut above Joseph's left eye. I asked if he wanted medical attention, and he informed 
me that he did not. I asked if he wanted to press charges, and he said yes but then told me that he 
did not want to be involved in the incident. He confirmed that no consent was given, and he felt 
pain. He wanted the other parties to know not to mess with him if he saw them again. I explained 
that if Joseph wanted to not be involved then all parties would be receiving citations, himself 
included. Joseph claimed that he was attacked by Mario, Rolando and Michael, so he did not 
understand why he was receiving a citation as well. I asked him to explain to me why he had 
walked out of the bar first and took off his jacket. Joseph would not answer my question and kept 
changing the conversation. Eventually, Joseph asked if I had wanted him to get beat up inside of 
the bar and that he had left the bar to fight outside. I had nothing further for Joseph and he still did 
not want medical attention. I advised him that he was free to leave.   

I then spoke with .  was the original caller and had been watching the disturbance 
from down the street in his car.  had informed Dispatch that the heavyset man, Joseph, had 
been the primary aggressor when they were outside the bar.   

I assisted Officer Geurts with transporting Mario to Outagamie Jail for his warrant. Mario explained 
the whole disturbance had started because Joseph was speaking down to Mario, Michael and 
Rolando. Joseph was also buying everyone drinks, but then trying to talk to  who was with 
Rolando. Joseph then started to brag about how much money he made and was instigating a 
fight.   

All Avigilon and Alta Aware footage was bookmarked and uploaded to evidence. After reviewing the 
footage, Mario, Rolando, Mario were all issued citations for Disorderly Conduct Battery AC 10-9. 
Joseph received a citation for Disorderly Conduct AC 10-9.   

I called and spoke with Vanessa Alvarado, the license holder for Mr. Frogs and the individual who 
had access to cameras. She informed me that she would upload the camera footage via the Axon 
Community link. A supplement will be added once that is completed.  

Axon Recording  

Arrest/ Custody:   

Joseph Nieto DOB: 3/21/1993  

Joseph was cited for Disorderly Conduct AC 10-9. He was involved in a physical disturbance on W 
College Ave.  

Michael Jimenez DOB: 5/8/1998  

Michael was cited for Disorderly Conduct Battery AC 10-9. He was involved in a physical 
disturbance and caused injury to Joseph Nieto.   

Mario Perez DOB: 12/8/1997  

Mario was cited for Disorderly Conduct Battery AC 10-9. He was involved in a physical disturbance 
and caused injury to Joseph Nieto.  

Rolando Lima Pedraza DOB: 8/22/1996  

Rolando was cited for Disorderly Conduct Battery AC 10-9. He was involved in a physical 
disturbance and caused injury to Joseph Nieto.  

Status: Cleared by arrest  
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Victim Services: N/A   

End of Report #9167

Supplemental 
Narrative

03/03/2025 02:53:18 9114 BRADY FELMER

OFFICER FELMER 9114 REPORTING: 

On Monday, March 3, 2025, at 0208 hours, I, Officer Felmer, working in full 
uniform, operating a fully marked patrol vehicle #1032, assigned to the Southern 
District, with the Appleton Police Department, responded to Mr. Frogs; 409 W 
College Avenue, in the City of Appleton, Outagamie County, WI for a disturbance. 
Dispatch notes indicated there was an in progress physical fight with 4-5 men in 
the middle of College Ave.  

Due to the nature of the call, I activated my emergency lights and siren and 
proceeded to the area. While responding, Officer Basak confirmed there was 
people fighting still.  

Upon arrival, I observed a male standing outside on the sidewalk with blood on 
his face and appeared to be involved in the fight. Officer Basak was speaking 
with that male and advised that the others involved returned inside of Mr. 
Frogs. Officer Reader and I then entered the bar; while entering, I observed a 
few people still inside the bar and advised other Officers responding, to 
respond to the rear of the bar incase the others fled through the back door.  

I then began identifying the party's in the bar and attempted to gather who was 
involved. I identified 3 party's, Mario Ruben Perez, Rolando Aldo Lima Pedraza, 
and . Mario was identified via his passport, Rolando 
was identified via Mexico ID, and  was identified via Wisconsin DL. While 
gathering their identity's, I observed on the sleeve of Mario's flannel shirt, 
some red substance, of which I believed of blood. I asked Mario about that and 
asked to see his knuckles to determine if he was involved. I did not observe any 
redness on Mario's knuckles. Mario denied being involved and advised he was 
trying to break up the fight. 

After identifying several party's, I returned to my patrol vehicle to watch 
Avigilon traffic cameras as it was being reported that the fight occurred 
outside of Mr. Frogs on the sidewalk. Upon observing the camera's, I observed 
Joseph Nieto exit the bar and take his jacket off and throw it on the ground 
before turning around and "squaring" up with Michael Jimenez. Joseph and Michael 
then began striking each other and while this was occurring, several others 
exited the bar and began striking what I believed to be Joseph. Due to the 
"scrum" that occurred, it was difficult to see who was striking who. Once I 
determined that all party's had an involvement in the disturbance, I relayed 
this to Officer Ballweg.  

I stood by until dispatch advised me that Mario had a warrant through the 
Appleton Police Department. I then went over where Mario was seated at the bar 
and requested, he stand up and placed him in handcuffs advising him that he had 
a warrant. I then escorted Mario out of the bar and to my patrol vehicle where I 
conducted a search of his person, not locating anything of evidentiary value. 
Mario was cooperative and I secured him in the rear of my patrol vehicle. 
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Officer Hruby then stood by maintaining visual of Mario.  

Once it was determined that all party's would be receiving citations for their 
involvement in the disturbance, I transferred Mario to Officer Geurts patrol 
vehicle due to my shift ending. See Officer Geurts supplement for further 
information on the transport of Mario to jail.  

This concludes my involvement in this case. 

End of Supplement.  

Officer Felmer 9114.

Supplemental 
Narrative

03/05/2025 16:14:57 9124 JOSEPH BASAK

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 

On 03/03/2025, I- -Officer Joseph Basak #9124- -was working as a fully 
uniformed Police Officer for the City of Appleton. I was working the 19:00 to 
03:00 patrol shift, assigned to the Southern District, and operating fully 
marked patrol squad 978. At approximately 02:08, numerous units were dispatched 
to Mr. Frogs; Located at 409 West College Avenue, City of Appleton, Outagamie 
County, Wisconsin, 54911, reference a physical fight between four to five 
people. Additional call notes indicated one person was getting kicked. 

At the time of dispatch, I was at the intersection of South Superior 
Street and West College Avenue. Due to my close proximity to this incident and 
the severity, I activated my emergency equipment and responded to the location. 
While westbound on West College Avenue, I observed numerous individuals still 
engaged in a physical altercation. As I approached North Division Street, the 
subjects returned inside. At this time, other units were arriving with me. As I 
exited my squad car, I observed a male walk towards Officer I. Hruby #9190, who 
was parked on West College Avenue, just west of North Division Street. I 
observed that the male was bleeding from his left eye. I identified the male via 
a Wisconsin Driver's license as ADULT OFFENDER Joseph Nieto. I asked Joseph if 
he wanted medical attention at which point he advised he was fine. Since 
Joseph's eye looked like it was cut, possibly in need of stitches and relatively 
severe, I asked Joseph another time if I could request an ambulance for him. 
Joseph again denied any medical treatment. 

Since other units were interviewing other parties involved, I began to 
speak with Joseph. Joseph mentioned that he had spent approximately $200.00. 
Joseph told me he was buying drinks for everyone. Joseph mentioned he had 
purchased drinks for girls at the bar but he also purchased drinks for there 
guys. Joseph explained multiple people were fighting with him. Joseph told me 
that he was also kicked. Joseph mentioned he was able to knock down a couple and 
seemingly was able to hold his own. Joseph continued to repeat that he was 
worried about getting knocked out because he did not know what would have 
happened to him if he was knocked out. Joseph also brought up the fact that he 
had a wife and children. 

I stood by with Joseph while he continued to speak with me reference 
being able to hold his own and getting attacked by numerous individuals. Officer 
M. Ballweg #9167 was able to speak with him. Once Officer Ballweg finished 
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speaking with Joseph, I cleared from this incident. 

My Axon BWC was activated throughout this contact. 

END OF SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 

Officer Joseph Basak #9124

Supplemental 
Narrative

03/07/2025 04:58:43 9208 OWEN GEURTS

On 03/03/2025, I, Officer O Geurts 9208, was working as a sworn Police Officer for the City of 
Appleton. I monitored a call for a disturbance at Mr. Frog's, in which 4-5 men were physically 
fighting.  

I arrived on scene and entered the bar. I noted that the men's bathroom was locked and am aware 
that they only lock from the inside. I knocked on the door several times to get the person inside to 
come out. The individual inside had blood on his hands and a ripped shirt collar, as though they had 
just been involved in a fight. The male was detained, and identified by WI DL as Michael Jimenez.  

I took Michael out to a squad car to speak to him. I asked Michael if he was injured. He stated that 
he was not injured and then proceeded to inform me that he was attacked by a "chubby" male. This 
male hit Michael and others in the face, according to Michael. Michael then began to complain of rib 
pain. I again asked Michael if he would like an ambulance to come and check him out. He denied 
medical. Michael then went on to say that the other male was "causing problems" but he and his 
friends did not want to get involved. Then the male just started hitting them. Michael then 
expressed confusion as to why he was getting arrested because it was all "the other guy". I then 
asked Michael to point out the individual that struck him and his friends, and he identified a male 
speaking with Officer Basak 9124. Michael then advised that he tried to "separate" the people who 
were fighting. It should be noted that I noted a strong odor of intoxicants coming from Michael, and 
he was slurring his speech. It should be noted that the only questions I asked Michael were 
regarding his injuries, and to identify the individual that struck him. This was all the information 
that Michael provided.  

I then assisted with transporting a male who had a warrant to jail. After this was completed, I had 
no further involvement in this case.  

End of Supplementary Report.  

Axon on.  

Ofc. Geurts 9208.
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A25010274

Reporting Officer: 9167 MASON BALLWEG

Report Time: 03/03/2025 02:08:00

Incident 

Incident Nature
Ordinance Violation

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
03/03/2025 02:00:00

Occurred To
03/03/2025 02:08:00

Received By
9167 MASON BALLWEG

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
05/07/2025

Cleared Intrnl Inc. Sts
Mailed Ordinance Summons

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9167 MASON BALLWEG

Case Numbers 

A25009721

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON

Offenses 

Liquor Law Violations

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 9-52(4)

Description 
OPEN AFTER 
HOURS/FAILURE TO VACATE 
PREMISES

Category 
ALC
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Persons 

TIERRABLANCA, NAYELI R
Contact

Address Phone DOB
08/19/2003

Race Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'05"

Weight
145

ALVARADO, VANESSA M
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
03/14/1990

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'01"

Weight
160

Narratives 

Original Narrative 03/06/2025 03:22:31

Officer Ballweg Reporting #9167:  

On March 3rd, 2025, around 0208 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working uniformed patrol 
for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete police uniform with all required gear, 
such as an APD police badge on my chest to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-
issued Axon body-worn camera. I was operating my marked patrol squad #1015. I had responded 
to 409 W College Ave, Mr Frogs, Appleton, WI 54911, Outagamie County. I was there for the 
disturbance that was documented under A25009721. While investigating the disturbance, I was 
made aware of an ordinance violation.   

The bartender for Mr Frogs, Nayeli Tierrablanca, had people inside of the establishment past 0200 
hours. After reviewing Alta Aware and Avigilon Camera footage, it showed that people were still 
inside of the establishment after 0200 hours. The footage was uploaded to evidence. The physical 
disturbance under A25009721 did not take place until 0207 hours. Video showed the individuals 
involved coming out of the bar at that time to fight. Several of them were then brought back into 
the bar by Nayeli. I spoke with Nayeli and she informed me that the disturbance had taken place 
outside of Mr Frogs, so the establishment could not be held accountable for the situation. Nayeli 
also informed the patrons inside to tell officers that the entire disturbance had taken part outside, 
so that "It could not be used against Frogs."   

After officers confronted Nayeli about the open after-hours violation, she explained that the 
disturbance had started inside of the bar, and she was unable to remove the patrons on time 
because they were being disruptive. When asked why she did not call the police to remove the 
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patrons before violating the ordinance, she did not have an answer. Lt. West #9119 also spoke with 
Nayeli and determined that she was intoxicated while working.   

On March 5th, 2025, around 2000 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working uniformed patrol 
for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete police uniform with all required gear, 
such as an APD police badge on my chest to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-
issued Axon body-worn camera. I was operating my marked patrol squad #1015. I contacted 
Vanessa Alvarado to speak with her about the ordinance violation. Vanessa was the license premise 
holder for the establishment. I spoke with Vanessa over the phone. She wanted to know if they 
would be cited for the open after-hours AC 9-52(4). I explained that they would likely receive a 
citation, but I wanted to review the cameras from the inside of the bar before I issued one. I 
wanted to see if Nayeli had been honest about the disturbance occurring inside, which was why she 
was unable to remove the patrons prior to 0200 hours. Vanessa informed me that she would send 
me the camera footage to review. I also informed Vanessa that Nayeli was intoxicated at time of 
contact, which Vanessa had not been aware of. Vanessa informed me that Nayeli typically worked 
on Saturday nights. I asked if Nayeli knew that the bar had to be shut down by 0200 hours on 
Mondays and Vanessa stated "No, we told her, we told her, she's just not the brightest."  

I will wait for Vanessa to send me the camera footage before issuing a citation.  

Axon Recording  

Arrest/ Custody: None  

Status: Active  

Victim Services: N/A   

End of Report #9167

Supplemental 
Narrative

03/10/2025 15:49:17 9167 MASON 
BALLWEG

Officer Ballweg Reporting #9167:  

On March 10th 2025, around 1527 hours, I, Officer Ballweg #9167, was working uniformed patrol 
for the City of Appleton Police Department. I wore a complete police uniform with all required gear, 
such as an APD police badge on my chest to identify me as a Police Officer and a department-
issued Axon body-worn camera. I was operating my marked patrol squad #1015. I was notified 
that Vanessa had uploaded the requested security camera footage from the interior of Mr. Frogs. I 
reviewed the two videos that had been uploaded.   

The first video started to record at 0203 hours. It would have already been passed the hours that 
the bar was allowed to be open. Majority of the patrons could be seen sitting at the bar and talking. 
Nayeli was observed placing something in front of one of the patrons but does not appear to be 
asking any of them to leave. There are also no signs of a disturbance taking place inside except for 
arguing by some patrons, but Nayeli did not appear to be attempting to break that up.   

The second video also started recording at 0203 hours on March 3rd, 2025. That video showed the 
interior of the bar and most of the parties involved in the disturbance are observed outside. They 
then make their way back into the bar as law enforcement arrived and could be seen running 
around the interior and toward the back door. The actual time was not shown on the footage, but 
based on the traffic cameras, it was likely after 0208 hours.   

Due to what was observed in the camera footage, I determined that a citation would be issued for 
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open after hours. Mr. Frogs still had patrons inside and was making no effort to have the patrons 
leave despite it being after the allowed hours of operation. Nayeli's statements to officers about not 
being able to shut down on time due to a disturbance inside also does not appear to be the case.   

Axon Recording  

Arrest/ Custody: Vanessa Alvarado DOB: 3/14/1990  

Vanessa was issued a citation for Open after hours/ Failure to Vacate Premises AC 9-52(4). 
Vanessa was the license holder for 409 W College Ave. The establishment had people on the 
premise after 0200 hours.   

Status: Cleared by Arrest  

Victim Services: N/A  

End of Report #9167
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A25013458

Reporting Officer: 9171 JACKSON READER

Report Time: 03/23/2025 01:54:20

Incident 

Incident Nature
Disturbance

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
03/23/2025 01:54:20

Occurred To
03/23/2025 01:54:20

Received By
436 KIMBERLY GLOEDE

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
03/24/2025

Cleared Intrnl Inc. Sts
Mailed Ordinance Summons

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9119 TYRELL WEST

9181 NICKLAUS BROADHURST

9103 NICHOLAS MEYER

9128 WESTON WATERS

9219 JAMISON WELLS

9183 WILLIAM BERENS

9172 BLAKE HERBERT

9134 CHARLES ALLEN

9201 ROBERT DIFRANCESCO

9171 JACKSON READER

Case Numbers 

A25013471

Circumstances
Code Comment

BODY CAMERA
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Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON

Offenses 

Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-9

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER

Persons 

WELLS, STEVEN JR
Contact

Address Phone DOB
08/21/1996

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'07"

Weight
160

TIERRABLANCA, NAYELI R
Contact

Address Phone DOB
08/19/2003

Race Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'05"

Weight
145
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Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'03"

Weight
130

ALANIS TORREZ, OLIVIA N
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
12/25/2000

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'03"

Weight
130

Narratives 

Original Narrative 03/24/2025 23:45:31

On Sunday, 03/23/2025, I, Officer Reader #9171, was working as a fully uniformed patrol officer 
for the City of Appleton Police Department. At approximately 01:54 hours, I was working the 
College Avenue Detail when I heard Lieutenant West call out a disturbance at Mr. Frogs (409 W 
College Ave). When I arrived, Lieutenant West escorted a female towards a patrol vehicle. She was 
later identified as Olivia Alanis-Torrez (F/W DOB: 12/25/2000). I assisted by stabilizing Olivia 
against a patrol vehicle unit Lieutenant Meyer secured her in handcuffs. I then escorted her to 
Officer Waters's patrol vehicle and seated her in the back. 

I attempted to interview Olivia about what had happened. However, she appeared heavily 
intoxicated and unclear about specific details. The following is what I gathered from my 
conversation with her and others on scene. Olivia was in Mr. Frogs with her friend,  

 when she went to the bar to see if they had her purse. The bartender, Nayeli 
Teirrablanca (F/W DOB: 08/19/2003), informed Olivia that no purse had been found matching her 
description. The argument about the purse caused the bouncer, Steven Wells Jr (M/B DOB: 
08/21/1996), to assist Olivia out of the bar.  

I reviewed traffic camera footage of this, and it looked like as Olivia was being removed from the 
bar, she tried punching Steven. Another male who was not identified was pushing Olivia away from 
the entrance area, and Olivia looked like she tried to strike this male as well.  

Olivia was with  during this incident. But after watching the traffic camera footage, it 
appeared like she was separated from Olivia early in the disturbance. Shortly after Oliva was 
removed from the entrance area, I could see on the camera that a male wearing black approached 
her. Olivia then used her right hand and struck this person in the face. The male who separated her 
initially, along with a security guard, took hold of Olivia and brought her to Lieutenant West. During 
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my investigation, I learned that Olivia had two active warrants for her arrest. She was transported 
to Outagamie County Jail by Officer Waters. See A25013471 for further. Because Olivia engaged in 
violent behavior that appeared to provoke a disturbance, I mailed her one citation for AC 10-9 
Disorderly Conduct. The traffic camera video was uploaded to Evidence.com via Axon Capture.  

RECORDING DEVICE: 

Axon On. 

ARREST/CUSTODY: 

Olivia Alanis-Torrez (F/W DOB: 12/25/2000) was issued one citation for AC 10-9 Disorderly 
Conduct. 

VICTIM SERVICES: 

N/A 

CASE STATUS/DISPOSITION: 

Cleared by arrest. 

End of Report. 

Officer Reader #9171
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A25015903

Reporting Officer: 9148 SAMUEL VANDINTER

Report Time: 04/05/2025 23:50:34

Incident 

Incident Nature
Disturbance

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
04/05/2025 23:50:27

Occurred To
04/05/2025 23:54:19

Received By
430 JASON MARTILLA

How Received
911 Line

Contact
holly lukasvewitz

Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
04/05/2025

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9148 SAMUEL VANDINTER

9119 TYRELL WEST

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9148

Offenses 
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Simple Assault

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-9

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

A

Criminal And Gang 

N

Weapons 

40

Persons 

LUKASZEWICZ, HOLLY L
Victim/Offender

Address Phone DOB
04/20/1974

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Unknown

Height
6'00"

Weight
160

WELLS, STEVEN JR
Contact

Address Phone DOB
08/21/1996

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'07"

Weight
160
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Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'04"

Weight
118

LOVE, TAJA D
Victim/Offender

Address Phone DOB
01/30/2001

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Unknown

Height
5'06"

Weight
145

Narratives 

Original Narrative 04/21/2025 04:15:05

Reporting Officer: S. Van Dinter #9148 
A25015903 

On 04/05/2025 at 11:50 PM while on duty for the City of Appleton Police Department I, Ofc. Van 
Dinter was dispatched to a disturbance at Mr. Frogs, 409 W. College Ave. in the City of Appleton. 
Dispatch advised Holly L. Lukaszewicz, F/W DOB:04/20/1974, called and stated she was struck in 
the tavern by an African American female in a red sweatshirt and jeans with her hair in a ponytail. 
This female was later identified as Taja D. Love, F/B DOB:01/30/2001.  

Upon arrival I spoke with Holly. Holly stated she went into the restroom. Holly stated once she was 
in the restroom someone started banging on the door. Holly stated when she exited the restroom 
she asked Taja if she had to throw up or if something was wrong with her. Holly told me Taja told 
her to, "get the fuck out of the bathroom". Holly told me Taja started pushing her and then hit her 
in the face with an open hand. Holly told me when hit it caused her pain without her consent. Holly 
told me the bouncer also grabbed her and pushed her out of the business.  

I spoke with Bouncer Steven Wells M/B DOB:08/21/1996, who was working at the time. Steven 
stated Holly exited the bathroom and yelled at Taja, "stop fucken knocking on the door". Steven 
stated he intervened and told both Holly and Taja to calm down. Steven stated Holly continued to 
yell at Taja and he told Holly she would need to leave. Steven stated Holly got aggressive towards 
him and he told her she needed to leave. Steven stated he escorted Holly out of the business. 
Steven located Taja in the business and I spoke with her outside.  

Taja told me she knocked on the bathroom door once and then again as she did not know if 
someone was in there or not. Taja stated Holly exit the bathroom and asked her if she needed to 
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throw up. Taja stated Holly started getting in her face so she pushed her away from her. Taja 
stated Holly kept getting into her face and she pushed her out of her face again. Taja stated Steven 
got in between them and Holly kept coming at her. Taja stated she slapped Holly in the face. Taja 
stated she wanted to apologize to Holly. Taja stated security then escorted Holly out of the tavern.  

I spoke with , F/W DOB: , who told me she was a witness to what 
happened.  stated she also knocked on the door to the bathroom.  stated when Holly 
came out she yelled, "Yall cant be knocking on the fucking door."  stated she tried to separate 
Taja and Holly however Holly got in Taja's face.  

I issued Taja and Holly a citation for disorderly conduct. I issued Taja her copy on scene and mailed 
Holly her copy.  

On 04/11/2025 Ofc. Burke attempted to obtain camera footage from Mr. Frogs, however was 
unable to.  

ARREST/CUSTODY:  Holly L. Lukaszewicz, F/W DOB:04/20/1974, issued citation for disorderly 
conduct AC 10-9. Taja D. Love, F/B DOB:01/30/2001 issued citation for disorderly conduct AC 
10-9.  

CASE STATUS: Cleared by adult arrest 

AXON: 9148 

END OF REPORT.  
OFC. VAN DINTER #9148
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A25019534

Reporting Officer: 9128 WESTON WATERS

Report Time: 04/26/2025 00:52:39

Incident 

Incident Nature
Disturbance

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
04/26/2025 00:52:39

Occurred To
04/26/2025 00:52:39

Received By
446 CALLEIGH MERRITT

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
04/26/2025

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Ordinance Citation Issued

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9201 ROBERT DIFRANCESCO

9167 MASON BALLWEG

9156 CONNOR CHRISTOPHERSON

9192 DOUGLAS LOVETT

9128 WESTON WATERS

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9128

Offenses 
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Simple Assault

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
13

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-9

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

N

Weapons 

40

Persons 

POPOVICH, ANNA K
Victim/Offender

Address Phone DOB
03/08/2003

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'09"

Weight
200

Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Unknown

Height
5'01"

Weight
125
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SEYMOUR, EMMA K
Victim/Offender

Address Phone DOB
02/16/2000

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'07"

Weight
200

Narratives 

Original Narrative 04/30/2025 04:14:20

Original Narrative 

On April 26th, 2025, I, Officer Waters 9128, was working as a fully uniformed Officer for the City of 
Appleton Police Department working the Downtown College Ave Detail. I was positioned at the 
intersection of N Division St and W College Ave within my marked patrol vehicle facing 409 W 
College Ave; Mr Frogs. I saw that a verbal disturbance was erupting outside of this bar as the 
bouncers were kicking a group of females out. I began approaching as this verbal disturbance 
transpired. As I was approaching, the group of females began throwing punches at each other. I 
began running toward this group and pulled one of the females off of the other as other Officers 
pulled the other female away. 

I then pulled the female I had pulled away to the side of one of the nearby buildings. I asked her to 
explain to me what had happened while identifying her. The female appeared distressed as she was 
crying and appeared injured. She showed me her tooth where it appeared chipped and potentially 
damaged beyond that. This female was identified verbally as Emma Seymour (DOB: 02/16/2000). 
Emma had explained to me that she had been minding her own business before her cousin attacked 
her outside of the bar. Emma later identified her cousin as Anna Popovich (DOB: 03/08/2003). 

I asked Emma why her cousin hit her. Emma said she did not know. Emma said that she had been 
caused pain without consent as a result of the injuries caused by Anna. Emma claimed to have not 
thrown any punches back at Anna. Additionally, Emma said that she did not want to be a victim of 
this incident. I then regrouped with other Officers. I was informed that Anna stated she had been in 
the bar when Emma was making claims that Anna was a bad mother. This began an argument 
which transpired outside of the bar. A fight ensued between the two shortly after. I was also 
informed by other Officers that camera footage existed of the incident. I watched this camera 
footage and it showed that Anna threw the first punch before a total of 4 females began hitting 
each other. 

Two of the females remained on scene while others fled. It appeared in the video that both Anna 
and Emma were throwing punches at each other after the first punch had been thrown. Neither 
Emma nor Anna had any interest in pursuing charges against one another. I asked other Officers to 
search for the other involved parties. They were unable to locate them. Due to the mutual 
combatants within this situation, acting in a loud and boisterous manner within a populated area, I 
made the decision to charge both parties with Ordinance Disorderly Conduct. I created citations for 
both Anna and Emma and issued them accordingly.  

I later logged the traffic camera into Evidence and ended my investigation. 

Arrest/Custody Information: 
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The following individuals were issued citations for the following violations in the City of Appleton, 
Outagamie County, Wisconsin: 

Emma Seymour (DOB: 02/16/2000) 

DISORDERLY CONDUCT AC 10-9 for acting in a loud and boisterous manner within a public area 
and fighting with another person. 

Anna Popovich (DOB: 03/08/2003) 

DISORDERLY CONDUCT AC 10-9 for acting in a loud and boisterous manner within a public area 
and fighting with another person. 

Victim Information: 

No victims. 

Disposition of Case: 

Case is closed with an adult arrest. 

Axon: 

Axon footage was recorded. 

Officer Waters 9128

Supplemental 
Narrative

04/28/2025 22:20:07 9201 ROBERT 
DIFRANCESCO

SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE: 

On Saturday, 4/26/2025, at 00:52 hours, I, Officer R. DiFrancesco (9201) was working as a sworn 
Patrol Officer for the City of Appleton Police Department. On the above date, I was working the 
College Ave. detail from Friday, 4/25/2025 at 22:00 hours to Saturday, 4/26/2025, at 03:00 hours. 
I was working this detail with Officer W. Waters (9218). On the above date and time, we in a 
marked squad parked on N. Division St. at W. College Ave. facing south towards the College Ave. 
bars. Specifically, we were across from Mr. Frogs, located at 409 W. College Ave. (City of 
Appleton).  

As I watched the front of Mr. Frogs, I observed there to be a group of women standing outside of 
the doorway on the sidewalk and a female subject just outside of the doorway to the bar. I heard a 
female's voice get louder and as I did, simultaneously, Officer M. Ballweg (9167) radioed to keep 
an eye on the group of people in front of Mr. Frogs. As I watched the group of women in front of 
Mr. Frogs, I observed the group of women all move out onto the sidewalk. I then observed a 
physical confrontation ensue between numerous women.  

I ran across the street with other officers to intervene in this incident. Once across the street I 
grabbed onto one of the women. I verbally identified this woman later as Anna Popovich. I handed 
Anna to Officer C. Christopherson (9156) and began questioning another female subject standing in 
front of Mr. Frogs. I verbally identified this woman as   

 advised she was out with Anna when they saw Emma and her two friends at Mr. Frogs.  
said there was tension inside the bar, but that Emma and her two friends left.  advised Emma 
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returned and that Emma and  exchanged words inside the bar, which resulted in them being 
told to leave.  said once outside of the bar, Emma and her two friends were in Anna's face 
and were recording her, saying how she was a bad mother and that they should call CPS.  
said she saw Emma and her two friends get into a physical altercation with Anna and that she 
intervened to defend Anna. At this time I ended my contact with   

Officer Thor and I went into Mr. Frogs to look for the other two women involved, but did so with 
negative results. I returned to Officer Waters' location and provided him with the information I 
obtained. This concluded my involvement with this incident. Axon on.  

END OF SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE 

DIFRANCESCO 9201
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A25022181

Reporting Officer: 9156 CONNOR CHRISTOPHERSON

Report Time: 05/10/2025 01:27:48

Incident 

Incident Nature
Damage to Property

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
05/10/2025 01:27:48

Occurred To
05/10/2025 01:27:48

Received By
447 KATLYN PETROVS

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
05/10/2025

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Ordinance Citation Issued

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9156 CONNOR CHRISTOPHERSON

9171 JACKSON READER

9190 HRUBY IZABELLA

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9156

Offenses 

Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-9

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER
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Destruction/Damage/Vandalism

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-23

Description 
DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY

Category 
PROP

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

N

Persons 

NELSON, PRESTON R
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
07/15/2000

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
6'01"

Weight
220

CASHAW, JARON K SR
Complainant

Address Phone DOB
07/26/1993

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'06"

Weight
180
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MENDOZA, BRYAN R
Witness

Address Phone DOB
11/30/2001

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
6'00"

Weight
240

MR FROGS
Victim

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON Wisconsin 54911

Phone
(920)364-0511

DOB

Race
Unknown

Sex
Unknown

Ethnicity

Height Weight
0

Property 

Door Damaged

Brand Model Serial Number

Color
Black

Quantity
1

Total Value
$500.00

Measurement
Items

Amount Recovered
$0.00

Date Recovered

Status
Destroyed/Damaged/Vandalized

Owner
MR FROGS

Narratives 

Original Narrative 05/11/2025 17:21:24

OFFICER CHRISTOPHERSON REPORTS: 

On 05/10/25 at approximately 0127 hours, I, Officer Christopherson, was working uniformed patrol 
in the City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin. I was patrolling the bar crowd in the 400blk 
of W College Ave when I observed staff at Mr. Frogs (409 W College Ave) forcefully removing 
someone from the bar. Officer made contact with the male who was being removed (later identified 
with a Wisconsin Driver's License as Preston Nelson) and detained him in handcuffs. 
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I entered the bar and made contact with Jaron Cashaw who was staff. Jaron explained that Preston 
had to use the restroom near the rear of the bar, but somebody was inside. He began knocking and 
requesting to enter, but was not able to as it was locked and being used. Eventually Preston forced 
entry into the restroom, damaging the door. At that point bar staff escorted him out of the bar 
where officers detained him. Jaron estimated the damages on the door to cost approximately 
$500.00 and did not give anyone permission to damage it. I took photographs of the damage and 
uploaded them to evidence.com under this case number. 

I then made contact with Officer Hruby who advised Bryan Mendoza (visually identified based on 
past contacts) had video footage of the incident. I sent him an Axon Community link and he was 
able to upload the video. I later reviewed the video which showed a male, who I was able to 
identify as Preston, knocking and hitting the door with his shoulder until he eventually lowered his 
shoulder into the door, forcing it open. 

Officer Hruby issued Mr. Frogs an Outagamie County Victim Rights packet and they opted out of 
additional services.  

Based on Preston's violent and disorderly behavior and the damage he caused to the door, I 
decided to issued him citations for Disorderly Conduct (AC 10-9) and Destruction of Property (AC 
10-23). I made contact with Preston and issued and explained the citations to him. He had no 
further questions or concern's. He was then released. 

VICTIM RIGHTS: 
Issued - opted out 

ARRESTS/CUSTODY INFORMATION: 
Preston R Nelson DOB: 07/15/2000 was issued citations for for Disorderly Conduct (AC 10-9) and 
Destruction of Property (AC 10-23). Preston acted in a violent and disorderly manner as he 
forcefully broke through a locked bathroom door. Preston caused damages to the door. 

CASE STATUS: 
Closed with adult arrest 

RECORDING DEVICE: 
Axon in use 9156 

End of report 

Officer Christopherson 9156
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A25023583

Reporting Officer: 9139 RYAN BIFFERT

Report Time: 05/18/2025 00:20:20

Incident 

Incident Nature
Disturbance

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
05/18/2025 00:20:20

Occurred To
05/18/2025 00:20:20

Received By
447 KATLYN PETROVS

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
05/18/2025

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Mailed Ordinance Summons

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9199 TURNER BOTZ

9172 BLAKE HERBERT

9129 TAYLOR JUSTICE

9139 RYAN BIFFERT

9216 BRANDON EDWARDS

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9139

Offenses 

Page 1 of 5

8/11/2025file:///C:/Users/allcoxci/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



Simple Assault

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-9 BATTERY

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT 
BATTERY

Category 
OTHER

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

A

Weapons 

40

Persons 

Victim

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity

Height
6'02"

Weight
165

LEWIS, ANTONIO J
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
10/02/1983

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
6'06"

Weight
265
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Witness

Address Phone
( ) -

DOB

Race
Black/African American

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Unknown

Height
6'00"

Weight
150

ALVARADO, VANESSA M
Contact

Address Phone DOB
03/14/1990

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'01"

Weight
160

Contact

Address Phone DOB

Race
White

Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Unknown

Height
5'05"

Weight
170

Narratives 

Original Narrative 06/06/2025 02:19:41

On 5/17/2025 I, Officer Biffert #9139 was working a College Ave. detail from 2200-0300 hrs. On 
5/18/2025 at 0020 hrs. I was waived into Mr. Frogs (409 W College Av. Appleton, WI 54911) by a 
bouncer for a fight that occurred inside of the bar. Upon arrival, the bar was busy and multiple 
people were being escorted out. The individuals being escorted out were  

 While exiting the bar, I was notified of another individual involved 
being described as a tall male/black wearing a white t-shirt. Witnesses on scene pointed the male 
out who was identified by WI DL as Antonio Lewis. Lt. Botz #9199 stopped Antonio to speak with 
him about the disturbance. I also walked over to Antonio and observed that Antonio was wearing a 
white t-shirt that had blood on it.  

I then spoke with  across the street.  was identified verbally and asked what happened. 
 stated that she did not know exactly what happened.  stated that there was a lot of 
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pushing and pulling.  stated that the man (Antonio), came after her. I asked  how this 
happened.  stated that he grabbed her shirt. While speaking with   along with 
others that did not want to identify themselves also approached me.   

I then spoke with  (id by WI DL).   advised that  was his girlfriends 
mother. While speaking with   and others continued to yell across the street towards 
Antonio and others.  continued by saying he was by the bathrooms in the bar and saw a male 
trying to swing on   stated that he was then trying to separate the two.  then stated 
that a tall male/black in a white shirt got into his face and started to swing on him.  said that 
the male then grabbed him and punched him from behind.  then admitted that he was able to 
get his hand on his back and hold him down until he was pulled away.  was bleeding from his 
right eye and had a fresh cut. I then asked  again how this altercation started.  stated that 
people were getting loud but admitted that he did not see anything physical. I asked  why 
someone would hit him.  advised that he did not know and again described how he was trying 
to hold people back.  then described his interaction again with the male (identified as Antonio). 

 said that Antonio said "what,what".  then said he asked Antonio if he had a problem.  
then stated that Antonio started to grabble with him and it became physical.  

I then spoke with  (verbal ID).  stated that he was trying to get his mom 
(  away from the situation and a male came up behind him and put him in a choke hold. 

 then stated that he saw the tall male black (Antonio) sucker punching   

Officer Justice #9129 spoke with Antonio about the incident. Antonio told officers that he was just 
trying to separate people. Antonio then continued and stated that if someone hit him or jumped on 
him that he would react to it. Antonio ultimately denied punching anyone. It should be noted that 
Antonio was wearing the white t-shirt but also had a distinct black coat with lettering on it.  

All of the parties were separated and left for the night. I spoke with bouncers at Mr. Frogs at 
around 0230 hrs. after they closed. The first bouncer I spoke with told me that they did not have 
video and that there was no disturbance. I told him that a different bouncer waived me into the bar 
in reference to a fight and also noticed multiple cameras in the ceiling. I then spoke with a different 
bouncer who ultimately stated that there was a disturbance but he did not see what actually 
happened. I also spoke with the bartender that noticed the disturbance and stated that she turned 
the lights on because of it but did not see what happened.  

I contacted Vanessa Alvarado (owner/manager) in reference to video. I left Vanessa a voicemail on 
5/21/25 requesting the video. On 5/23/25 I spoke with Vanessa and was advised that she would 
send me the video via axon link. I sent Vanessa the axon link after our conversation. On 5/25/25 I 
followed up with Vanessa by leaving her a voicemail because I had not received any video. On 
6/2/25, I still had not received any video and left Vanessa another voicemail. On 6/6/2025 I was 
notified that Vanessa had submitted the video evidence. I reviewed the video and observed Antonio 
wearing the distinct black jacket. I then observed Antonio take the jacket off and swing multiple 
times at someone. The video quality was poor and I could not see who Antonio was hitting but I 
could distinguish Antonio due to the jacket he was wearing and then the white t-shirt. I could not 
see any type of disturbance prior to this.  

Based on the following, Antonio was mailed a citation for disorderly conduct. Multiple witnesses 
pointed him out walking out of Mr. Frogs as being involved. Antonio admitted that he was trying to 
break the disturbance up and made the comment that if someone hit him he would react. Antonio 
was wearing a distinct black jacket and white shirt. Video evidence showed Antonio trying to hit 
someone. Antonio also had blood on his shirt.  and  both stated that Antonio was hitting 

  also had visible injuries. 

Arrest/Custody Information:  

Antonio Lewis cited for Disorderly Conduct (AC 10-9) 

Case Status and Disposition:  
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Case is cleared by arrest.  

Recording Device:  

Axon active.   

Victim Information:  

None.   

End of Report   

Officer Biffert #9139
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A25024083

Reporting Officer: 9139 RYAN BIFFERT

Report Time: 05/18/2025 02:00:00

Incident 

Incident Nature
Disturbance

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
05/18/2025 02:00:00

Occurred To
05/18/2025 02:30:00

Received By
416 ALLISON SELL

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
05/21/2025

Cleared Intrnl Inc. Sts
Mailed Ordinance Summons

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9139 RYAN BIFFERT

Case Numbers 

A25023583

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9139

Offenses 

Disorderly Conduct

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 10-9

Description 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Category 
OTHER
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Persons 

LEAVITT, RONNI L
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
12/13/1992

Race
White

Sex
Male

Ethnicity
Non-Hispanic/Latino

Height
6'02"

Weight
330

Narratives 

Original Narrative 05/21/2025 20:18:44

On 5/18/2025 at approximately 0207 hrs. I, Officer Biffert #9139 was inside Mr. Frogs in reference 
to A25023583. At that time, I noticed a bouncer with Mr. Frogs later identified as Ronni Leavitt 
inside yelling at some individuals at the front door. It should be noted that the bar was closed and 
the door was locked. The individuals outside appeared to be asking for a lost phone. I then heard 
Ronni go up to the door and yell at the group of people saying "who the fuck you talking to". Ronni 
said this multiple times. Ronni then said "meet me in back", "meet me in the back alley", "meet me 
in the alley", "you better have a switch on you" "goofy ass nigga" "cornball".  

Ronni was then separated and said that I did not know what the other guy was saying. I explained 
to Ronni that it was not appropriate and obtained updated information for follow up.  

It should be noted that after leaving Mr. Frogs, I noticed Ronni start walking south on Walnut St. 
from College Av. towards the back alley behind Mr. Frogs. I then lost sight of him and observed the 
other male waiting in a vehicle in the St. Joseph Parish parking lot. That vehicle left shortly after I 
drove through the lot.  

I attempted to follow up with Ronni in reference to this however have not been able to get ahold of 
him. 

Based on my training and experience, Ronni was trying to incite a fight with another individual. I 
also know the term switch as an attachment to a weapon that turns the weapon into an automatic. 
Based on these statements and the fact that Ronni was observed walking back towards the area 
where he told the other guy to meet him, I am issuing Ronni a disorderly conduct citation. The 
citation was mailed to the current address Ronni provided me.  

Arrest/Custody Information:  

Ronni Leavitt cited for DC (AC 10-9) for trying to incite a fight with another.  

Case Status and Disposition:  

Case is cleared by arrest 

Recording Device:  

Axon active.   
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Victim Information:  

None.   

End of Report   

Officer Biffert #9139
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APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A25028772

Reporting Officer: 9171 JACKSON READER

Report Time: 06/14/2025 19:45:51

Incident 

Incident Nature
Ordinance Violation

Address
409 W COLLEGE AV; MR 
FROGS
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
06/14/2025 19:45:51

Occurred To
06/14/2025 19:45:51

Received By
9183 WILLIAM BERENS

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
06/14/2025

Cleared Intrnl Inc. Sts
Ordinance Citation Issued

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9183 WILLIAM BERENS

9171 JACKSON READER

Circumstances
Code Comment

BODY CAMERA

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON

EVIDENCE.COM

Offenses 
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Liquor Law Violations

Completed? Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
AC 9-51(SELLS)

Description 
ADULT DISPENSES OR SELLS 
ALCOHOL TO A MINOR

Category 
ALC

Persons 

TIERRABLANCA, NAYELI R
Adult Offender

Address Phone DOB
08/19/2003

Race Sex
Female

Ethnicity
Hispanic/Latino

Height
5'05"

Weight
145

Narratives 

Original Narrative 06/14/2025 20:19:28

On 06/14/2025, at 19:45, I, Ofc. Reader #9171 was conducting alcohol compliance checks within 
the City of Appleton and was assigned CSO Tyler Piton (M/W ) as an underage 
individual to work with me. Prior to beginning the compliance checks, I took a photograph of CSO 
Piton to document his appearance during the checks. The photograph was later uploaded to Axon 
Capture. CSO Piton went into Mr. Frogs, located at 409 W College Ave. CSO Piton spoke with the 
bartender, later identified verbally as Nayeli Tierrablanca (F/U DOB: 08/19/2003) who failed to 
identify him or ask for an ID. Nayeli sold CSO Piton a bottle of Pabst Blue Ribbon for $5.10. The 
sale was completed through an exchange of cash. CSO Piton returned to me outside of the bar and 
informed me of the sale. CSO Piton stated the bartender was wearing a neon yellow dress. I 
entered the premise and immediately noticed that Nayeli was wearing the neon yellow dress. I 
spoke with Nayeli, who indicated she sold the beverage to CSO Piton without checking his 
identification. I issued Nayeli a summons and Officer Berens answered her questions regarding it. 
The alcoholic beverage purchased was still on the bar top when officers entered. It was 
photographed and uploaded into Axon Capture. Lt. Goodin was notified of the incident. 

VICTIM SERVICES:  

N/A  

ARREST/CUSTODY INFORMATION:  

 Nayeli Tierrablanca (F/U DOB: 08/19/2003) was issued a citation for Licensee Dispense/Sell 
Alcohol to Minor 1st Offense pursuant to City of Appleton ordinance AC 9-51.  
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CASE STATUS:  

Cleared by arrest (citation).  

End of report  

Reader #9171
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OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6443 
f: 920.832.5823 

www.appletonwi.gov 

 

 
 
January 7, 2025 
 
Mr. Frog’s on the Ave 
409 W College Avenue 
Appleton, WI 54911 
 
Attention: Vanessa Alvarado 
 
Dear Alcohol License Holder, 
 
The purpose of this letter is to inform you of the status of the demerit points against your 
alcohol license for the premises known as Mr. Frog’s, located at 409 W College Ave, in 
the City of Appleton.  Furthermore, you are hereby required to attend the Safety and 
Licensing Committee on Wednesday, January 22nd at 5:30 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, 6th floor of City Hall, to inform the Committee about your efforts to rectify the 
issues that caused the imposition of any demerit points. 
 
Your establishment recently had a violation for Underage Person(s) on Premises and 
Dispense Alcohol to Minor on September 15, 2024  which resulted in convictions on 
December 4, 2024.  Underage Person(s) on premises carries an assessment of 80 
demerit points and Dispense Alcohol to Minor carries an assessment of 80.  At this time, 
the license for this establishment has a total of 160 demerit points assessed against it 
within the last 24 months. 
 
Please be advised that if any establishment holding an alcohol license accumulates 
150-199 demerit points within a 24-month period, the license is subject to suspension 
for not less than 10 days nor more than 90 days.  If any alcohol licensee accumulates 
200 or more demerit points within a 36-month period, the license is subject to 
revocation.  A copy of the ordinance was provided to you at the time you received your 
license.   
  
The City of Appleton Police Department offers free training to help ensure your 
establishment is operating in a manner that is safe and legal.  If you are interested in 
taking advantage of this free training, please contact Lt. Benjamin Goodin at the 
Appleton Police Department. 
 
If you have any questions related to this matter, please contact me at 920-832-6443. 
 
Respectfully, 

 
Kami Lynch, City Clerk 

http://www.appletonwi.gov/


OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6443 
f: 920.832.5823 

www.appletonwi.gov 

 

 
 
May 12, 2025 
 
Mr. Frog’s on the Ave 
409 W College Avenue 
Appleton, WI 54911 
 
Attention: Vanessa Alvarado 
 
Dear Alcohol License Holder, 
 
The purpose of this letter is to inform you of the status of the demerit points against your 
alcohol license for the premises known as Mr. Frog’s, located at 409 W College Ave, in 
the City of Appleton.  Furthermore, you are hereby required to attend the Safety and 
Licensing Committee on Wednesday, May 28th at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 
6th floor of City Hall, to inform the Committee about your efforts to rectify the issues that 
caused the imposition of any demerit points. 
 
Your establishment recently had a violation for Open After Hours on March 13, 2025,  
which resulted in convictions on May 7, 2025.  Open After Hours carries an assessment 
of 50 demerit points.  At this time, the license for this establishment has a total of 130 
demerit points assessed against it within the last 24 months. 
 
Please be advised that if any establishment holding an alcohol license accumulates 
150-199 demerit points within a 24-month period, the license is subject to suspension 
for not less than 10 days nor more than 90 days.  If any alcohol licensee accumulates 
200 or more demerit points within a 36-month period, the license is subject to 
revocation.  A copy of the ordinance was provided to you at the time you received your 
license.   
  
The City of Appleton Police Department offers free training to help ensure your 
establishment is operating in a manner that is safe and legal.  If you are interested in 
taking advantage of this free training, please contact Lt. Benjamin Goodin at the 
Appleton Police Department. 
 
If you have any questions related to this matter, please contact me at 920-832-6443. 
 
Respectfully, 

 
Kami Lynch, City Clerk 

http://www.appletonwi.gov/
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